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His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House
Concord, NH 03301

December 4, 2019

REQUESTED ACTION

3o

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth,
and Families to exercise a renewal option with Bethany Christian Services of Northern New
England, (Vendor #161782-B001), P.O. Box 320, 183 High Street Candia NH 03034, to provide
a Community and Faith-Based Initiative for the support of foster, relative, and adoptive families
by increasing the price limitation by $100,000 from $100,000 to $200,000 and by extending the
completion date from December 31, 2019 to December 31, 2021, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval. 100% Federal funds.

The original agreement was approved by the Governor and Executive Council on October

11, 2017 (ltem # 11).

05-95-42-421010-29730000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT. OF, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, PROMOTING SAFE AND

STABLE FAMILIES

State Class / Job Current Increased Revised
Fiscal Account Class Title Number (Modified) { (Decreased) | Modified
Year Budget Amount Budget
102 Contracts for
2018 - Program 42107306 $25,000 $0 $25,000
500734 Servi
ervices
102 Contracts for
2019 - Program 42107306 $50,000 $0 $50,000
500734 Servi
ervices
102 Contracts for
2020 . Program 42107306 $25,000 $25,000 $50,000
500734 Servi
ervices
102 Contracts for
2021 ~ Program 42107306 $0 $50,000 $50,000
500734 Servi
ervices
102 Contracts for
500734 Servi
_ _ ervices
o ‘ J? I Total $100,000 $100,000 $200,000
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EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is to modify the scope of services for the provision of
recruitment, retention, and support services for foster, relative, and adoptive families by adding
an additional scope of work to include activities that are specific to the recruitment of families for
children who the Department has determined to be difficult to place.

Approximately 350 — 400 individuals will be served from December 31, 2019 through
December 31, 2021, directly through receiving goods and services, while hundreds more will be
served indirectly through forums and outreach efforts to local churches and businesses.

The original agreement, included language in Exhibit C-1, Revisions to General
Provisions, Paragraph 3, that allows the Department to renew the contract for up to two (2)
years, subject to the continued availability of funding, satisfactory performance of service,
parties’ written authorization and approval from the Governor and Executive Council. The
Department is in agreement with renewing services for the two (2) remaining years at this time.

Foster, relative, and adoptive parents have a critical role in ensuring the safety and well-
being of children in New Hampshire who have been removed from their birth families. By
recruiting foster, relative, and adoptive parents, and providing assistance to these families, the
Department is able to maintain an available pool of providers who can deliver care for these
children. Children who enter foster care and are adopted from foster care may have challenges
related to the trauma that they have experienced, and access to support and services while in
care and after adoption helps to retain families and ensure the well-being of the children. The
services provide benefits to the families, the children, and the State.

Recruiting and supporting foster, relative, and adoptive parents improves all child-serving
systems because it allows children to have the support they need to remain in their communities,
where they can receive other necessary services. Providing stable home environments for
children can have positive effects on schools, childcare centers, afterschool programs, family
assistance programs, and ultimately housing, homeilessness, and even the state correctional
system. Modifying the services of this agreement to strengthen the recruitment of foster, relative,
and adoptive parents for children who are difficult to place will improve the ability of the
Department to be able to serve all children in need of these services.

The Community and Faith-Based Initiative was developed as part of the Department’s
statewide recruitment and retention plan. The Department seeks to engage leaders in
community and faith-based organizations in order to increase the community supports available
to assist foster, relative, and adoptive families.

Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England effectiveness in delivering services
will be measured through monitoring of the following performance measures:-

s The Contractor shall fulfill at least five hundred (500) requests per calendar year
for support for foster, relative, and adoptive families and their children. To date,
the Contractor has provided direct services and goods to approximately 140
families, however, they served approximately 1900 individuals through their
Operation Christmas Joy event. The Contractor has also held seven (7) different
events at DCYF District Offices and conducted outreach efforts to approximately
190 churches and businesses.
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The Contractor shall provide a list to the Department of at least sixty (60) people
per calendar year who express an interested in becoming foster or adoptive
parents and have been referred to DCYF. To date, the Contractor has reported
ninety six (96) people expressed interest in becoming foster or adoptive parents
and have been referred to DCYF during the first year and a half of this contract at
an average of 64 persons per year.

The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting based on Department
requirements. To date, the Contractor has submitted timely semi-annual reports of
the first three (3) reporting periods of January — June 2018, July — December 2018
and January - June 2019.

The Contractor shall organize and oversee at least two Faith Forums per year. To
date, the Contractor has conducted five (5) forums within the first three (3)
reporting periods of the current contract.

Should the Governor and Executive Council not approve this request, the State may not
be able to attract the additional foster, relative and adoptive families who would be recruited
through activities described by the additional scope of services, and may not be able find
adequate placements for all children who are served by the Department. In addition, the
Department may forgo important partnerships with churches, schools, and community
organizations that would otherwise be established through the expanded scope of services.

Area served:; Statewide

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds. (CFDA # 93.556 - Promoting Safe and Stable
Families Program, FAIN 1901NHFPSS).

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Respectfully submitted

ffrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunities for citizens to achieve health and independence.



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community and Faith Based Initiative to
Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Human Services
Amendment #1 to the Community and Faith Based Initiatives to Support Foster, Relative and
Adoptive Families

This 1®* Amendment to the Community and Faith Based Initiatives to Support Foster, Relative and
Adoptive Families contract (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment #17), is by and between the State of
New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services (hereinafter referred to as the "State" or
“Department"”) and Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England, (hereinafter referred to as "the
Contractor™), a corporation with a place of business at 183 High St. Candia, NH 03034,

WHEREAS, pursuant to an agreement {the "Contract") approved by the Governor and Executive Council
on October 11, 2017 (item #11), the Contractor agreed to perform certain services based upon the terms
and conditions specified in the Contract and in consideration of certain sums specified; and

WHEREAS, the State and the Contractor have agreed to make changes to the scope of work, payment
schedules and terms and conditions of the contract; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Form P-37, General Provisions, Paragraph 18, and Exhibit C-1, Revisions to
General Provisions, Paragraph #3, the State may modify the scope of work upon written agreement of the
parties and approval from the Governor and Executive Council; and

WHEREAS, the parties agree to extend the term of the agreement, increase the price limitation, and
modify the scope of services to support continued delivery of these services; and

WHEREAS, all terms and conditions of the Contract not inconsistent with this Amendment #1 remain in
full force and effect; and

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and the mutual covenants and conditions contained
in the Contract and set forth herein, the parties hereto agree to amend as follows:

1. Form P-37 General Provisions, Block 1.7, Completion Date, to read:
December 31, 2021

2. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.7, Price Limitation, to read:
$200,000

3. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.9, Contracting Officer for State Agency, to read:
Nathan D. White, Director.

4. Form P-37, General Provisions, Block 1.10, State Agency Telephone Number, to read:
603-271-9631.

5. Add Exhibit A, Scope of Services, Section 2, Subsection 2.10, to read:

2.10. The Contractor shall perform activities that are specific to the recruitment of foster and
adoptive parents for children that the Department has identified as difficult to place. The
Contractor shall provide these services for any child, regardless of their age, race, color,
religion, national origin, sex, or sexual orientation. These activities shall include, but are
not limited to:

2.10.1. Case mining the paper and electronic case records of the difficult to place
children's’ records to identify individuals who are potential foster or adoptive
parents, or who can provide other support resources. The Contractor shall not

Contractor Initials :TM
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community and Faith Based Initiative to
Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families

discriminate among the individuals identified as potential resources on the basis
of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, or sexual orientation.

2.10.2  Attending meetings at locations statewide, as scheduled by the Department, to
provide information about the needs of specific children, as identified by the
Department, to prospective foster and adoptive parents.

6. Delete Exhibit B-3, in its entirety and replace with Exhibit B-3, Amendment #1, Budget Sheet.

7. Add Exhibit B-4, Amendment #1, Budget Sheet.

8. Add Exhibit B-5, Amendment #1, Budget Sheet.

9. Delete Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, Version CU/DHHS/110713 and
replace with: Exhibit K, DHHS Information Security Requirements, Version V5 Last update
10.09.2018.

Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England ~ Amendment #1 Contractor Initials GLP
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community and Faith Based Initiative to
Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families

This amendment shall be effective upon the date of Governor and Executive Council approval,
IN WITNESS WHEREQCF, the parties have set their hands as of the date written below,

State of New Hampshire
Department of Health and Hu ervices

/2= 4

Date Name: Joseph E AZibsam
Title: Direcjbr, ision for Children, Youth and Families

Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England

|2 -2 (4 oo ek @-SU'A

Date Name:

Title: L) 1recAn~ BQ.NQ-(T\‘\..—. 4/‘-34“@“*(

Acknowledgement of Contractor’s signature:

State of M) Hampsha County of 20"-[‘-4»&—‘— on {2~2—/5 , before the

undersigned officer, personally appeared the pers®n identified directly above, or satisfactorily proven to

be the person whose name is signed above, and acknowledged that s/he executed this document in the
capacity indicated above.

JQom 1

“Signature of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Shacon Vockan 4

Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

My Commission Expires:

. o |||er,‘l [ ,“.,“J
B“‘um”“\ClU\.IID, Nﬂtﬂy Pu“c - SR S
N -,\.\ SR [
My Commission Explres October.2, 2024 O v
SN L
< N ? L. L-"’ "'_
- - ql-tia T
Lo T~ z
. Ty N
O O
o e
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community and Faith Based Initiative to
Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families

The preceding Amendment, having been reviewed by this office, is approved as to form, substance, and
execution.

OFFICE OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL

/a/%//‘i M

Date ! Name/" ) cpnenme PINos
Title:
SHpornsug
| hereby certify that the foregoing Amendment was approved by the Governor and Executive Council of
the State of New Hampshire at the Meeting on: (date of meeting)

OFFICE OF THE SECRETARY OF STATE

Date Name:
Title:

Belhany Christian Services of Northern New England ~ Amendment #1
RFP-2018-DCYF-08-COMMU-01-A01 Page 4 of 4 ¥



Exhibit B-3, Amendment #1, Budget Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Bethany Christisn Services of Northern New England
Budget for: Community and Faith Based Initiative to Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families
Budgel Period: SFY 2020 (07/01119-06/30/2020}
. ;( ":-_; o ".; ‘,. 2 =l -;-"7" T ‘.
1. Total Salary/Waqges s - $ 4267600 |3 3837001 % - $ 3637008 38,736.00 - $ 38,739.00
2. _Employes Benelils $ 9,282.00 ) % - s 9,282.00 | § 57800 $ - s 87606 8 8,408.00 - 3 8,408.00
3. Consultants S - $ - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - $ - - [] .
4. Equipment: $ - 3 - 3 - $ - 3 - $ . 3 - $ - 3 -
Renta) s - $ - s - 3 - 3 - $ - s - $ - 3 -
Repair arxt Maintenance s - $ - $ - $ - s - S - 3 - 3 - s -
Purchase/Depreciation E - $ - $ - $ - $ - $ - s - ] - 3 -
5. Supplies: 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - $ - $ - 3 - $ -
Educational [ - ] - ) - $ - 5 - s - -] - s - 3 -
Lab - - - 3 - 3 - 3 - s - $ - -
Pharmacy - - - b - ] - F - 3 - $ - -
Medical - - - b - $ - 3 - 3 - $ - ] -
Office - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - $ - s - $ - 3 -
6. Travel $ 2400001 % - 3 240000 ] $ - $ - 3 - 3 2400001 3 - $ 2,400.00
7. Ocoupancy 3 120000 5 - ] 1,200.00 | § 1,20000 | § - $ 1,200,001 § - ] - 3 -
8. Current Expenses $ - $ - s - s - ] - $ - 3 - s - $ -
Telephone $ 43200 | § - $ 432001 % 43200 | $ - S 43200 ] $ - 3 - $ -
Postage 3 - $ - 3 - 5 - [] - $ - $° - $ - s -
Subscriptions 3 - $ - 3 - s - $ - $ - s - 3 - $ -
Audit and Legal b - $ - b - s - s - $ - ] - $ - S -
Insurance $ - $ - s - S - $ - s - 3 - $ - 3 -
Board Expenses 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 L 3 - 5 -
9. Software $ 45500 | § - $ 455.00 | 3 - 3 - $ - 3 455001 % - 3 455.00
10._Marketing/Communications $ - 3 - 5 - - - $ - $ - ;] - 3 - $ -
11, Staff Education and Training H - 3 - 3 - $ - s - 3 - $ - $ - $ -
12. Subcontracts/Agreements $ - $ - $ - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - $ -
13. Other (Recnitmeni Event): 5 100000 ] § - k] 1,000.00 | § 1,00000 | § - 3 1,000.00 | § - 3 - [ B
Volunteers : 3 2370.00] $ - ] 237000 | § 237000 | % - 3 237000 | 3 - 3 - ] .
Direct Assistanca to Foster/Adoptive Famiig § 1.041.00 ] § - ] 104100 | § 1,043.00 | § - 3 1,041.00 ] § - 3 - 3 -
Adminisirative Overhead 3 - $ 584200 | % 584200 | % - 3 584200 | $ 584200 | § - $ - 3 -
3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - $ -
" "TOTAL 3 60,856.00 |'$ 5,842.00 | § 66,698.00 | & 10,856.00 | % 584200 | § 16,698.00 | § 50,000.00 | § = S 50,000.00_|
Indlrect As A Percent of Direct 9.6%
Bethany Christian Servicas of Northern New Engtand I
RFP-2018-DCYF-08-COMMU-01-A01 .ot - Contracior Intial
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Exhibit B-4, Amendment #1, Budget Sheset

Budget Period: SFY 2021 (070120 - 0830/21)

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Bldder/Program Name: Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England

e g —" T
e e VT e T 5

TOWIFrogram Cost,:

e e
PR Ny Fes -

o "'E.:A‘A" N
Ejpe Ite m*. .

"'!Direct

Tntremental <

- lngirect
Fixed

-

Tagalj:

3. Total Saigylwaqes

43.231.00

43,231.00

Budget for: Community and Falth Based Initiative to Support Foster, Relstive, and Adoptive Families

'1' ] ,(,Funded’b ‘Dl-ti_uslc

- DIFECL Y
Incremem_all

33&)800

2. Employee Benefils

9,478.00

9,478.00

8,692.00

3. Consuftants

had Ld (%]

had bad b B

4, Equipment:

Rental

Repair and Malntenance

o 1on | 69 |6 4 40

Purchase/Depreciation

5. Supplies:

Py Py P PP PPY

Educational

Lab

Pharmacy

Medical

Odtice

R bl Ll Dad td Al b L L ol Ll L2 T2 I
3

5. Travel

A L on [N

7. Occupancy

1,200.00

8. Current Expenses

A [ | o oo o |on |60 |68 168 [

060 |64 0P |0 oN |60 |$m [ on

i [ |om 6 [0 [ 60 4 14

o [n|enor e ]or | |n

U O ™ 0 A ] O R

Telephone

Postage

Subscriptions

Audit and Legal

o |08 | o

vad il L diod g

Insurance

Board Expenses

o i | [ 1A e

PPy PPy P PPy S
'

9, Software

P P P

10. Marketing/Communications

W [on |4

1 (6 |on fon

| len

11. Staft Education and Training

12. Subcontracts/Agreements

Ll Al

13. Other (Recruitment Event):

1,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

1,000.00

P

Volunteers

Ladi AL ] L] g

Direct Assistance to Foster/Adoptive Farmilid

2,080.00

2,080.00

2,080.00

2,080.00

Adminisirative Dverhasd

5,839.00

5 839.00

2

5.839.00

5,839.00

O Lon hom | o |60

TOTAL

| oo |onfon |on [onfonfonfen |inen

60,829.00

| | oy |G | |l

5,829.00

Lol bad i Lo dis 10

66,668.00

10,829.00

5,639.00

16,668.00

50,000.00

50,000.00 |

Indirect As A Percent of Direct

Bethany Christian Services of Northern New Engiand
RFP-2018-DCYF-08-COMMU-01-A01
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Exhibit B-5, Amendment #1, Budgst Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Heatth 2nd Human Services
Bidder/Program Name: Bethany Christisn Services of Northern New England
Budget for: Community snd Falth Based Inttiative to Suppon Fester, Retative, and Adoptive Famities

Budget Period: SFY 2022 (0T/01/21-17/31/2021)

-Funded!bwDHHS'contracl share -~ ,
} : Y 5. Blrec{ ) v -":";" “"’Indlrec:‘ DR Bl ‘I‘Ln:t%:]"

Llneiltem LS . Incrememzl " P A Sl ncremenmlﬂ "-u_ Figedr " f' Ty

Total Sa!__agﬂWages $ 216160018 - 21 616 00 ] % 2,162.00 | 3 - S 2.162.00 F 19,454.00 | § - $ 19,454.00
| Emwee Benefits 3 473000 | § - 5 4739.00] 8 393.00 | 4 - 3 39300 S 434600 | § - $ 4,346.00

3 Consultants 3 - $ - - 3 . 4 - - s - ] - 3 -

4. Equipment: - $ - - 3 - 3 - - 3 - - 3 -
Rental - 3 - 5 - 3 - [ - - - - 3 -
Repair and Mainienance L It - 15 - 3 - 13 - - - - ]S -
Purchase/Depreciation 3 - - 5 - s - 3 - 3 - - ] - -

5. Suppties; $ - - 3 - - $ - - L - -
Educational 3 - - ] - 3 - - 3 - - 5 - -
Lab 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 - - 3 - - 3 - -
Phamacy - 3 - 3 - E - 3 - - § - 3 - s -
Medical - 3 - 5 - 3 - 3 - - $ - $ - $ -
Office - [ - s - - - - - 3 - 3 -

6. Travel 3 1,20000 ] 8 - 1,200.00( § - - 3 - 3 1,200.00 | § - $ 1,200.00

7. Occu 3 800003 - 3 6500.00 | § 600.00 - ] €00.00 - 3 - ] -

8. Current Expenses [ - 3 - ] - 3 - 3 - [ - - 3 - -
Telephone 24000 | 3 - s 240.00 | 3 24000 % - 240.00 | % - ] - 3 -
Postage - 1 - 3 - - 5 - - ] - - s -
Subscriptions - - 3 - - 3 - - 3 - - [ -
Audit and Legal - - 3 - - 3 = - 3 - - ] -
nsurance 3 - - b - 3 - - 3 - - $ - -
Board Expensas 3 - S - 3 - S - - 3 - . S - -

9. Software 48000 | § - 3 480.00 | $ 480.00 - 3 480.00 - $ - -

10._Marketing/Communications - E3 - s - $ - 3 - 3 - - 3 - -

11, Staf! Education and Training - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - ] - S - - $ -

12. Subcontracts/Agreements - - s - 3 - $ - 3 - 3 - 3 - 3 -

13. Other (specific detzlls mandatory): 3 - - 5 - ] - - 3 - ] - - [ -

Voluntesers S - - 3 - 3 - - 3 - - ] - 5 -

Direct Assistance to FosterfAdoptive Femilid § 1,539.00 | § - 1,539.001 § 1,539.00 - 3 1,538.00 - ] - 3 -

|Administrative Overhead 3 - 3 2.920.00 2920001 % - 3 292000] 3 2,920.00 - 3 - -

$ - $ - 3 - 4 - - § - - 3 - -
TOTAL $ 3041400 | § 2,920.00 [ § 33334001 % 5,414.00 [ § 2,920,000 | $ 8,334.00 | § 25,000.00 | ¢ - $ 25,000.00 ]

indirect As A Percent of Direct 2.6%

Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England J (_{

RFP-2018-DCYF-08-COMMU-01-A01 Contracior Inisats
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

A. Definitions
The following terms may be reflected and have the described meanihg in this document:

1. “Breach” means the loss of control, compromise, unauthorized disclosure,
unauthorized acquisition, unauthorized access, or any similar term referring to
situations where persons other than authorized users and for an other than
authorized purpese have access or potential access to personally identifiable
information, whether physical or electronic. With regard to Protected Health
Information, “ Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section
164.402 of Title 45, Code of Federal Regulations,

2. “Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning “Computer Security
incident” in section two (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National Institute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department
of Commerce.

3. “Confidential Information” or “Confidential Data” means all confidential information
disclosed by one party to the other such as all medical, health, financial, public
assistance benefits and persconal information including without limitation, Substance
Abuse Treatment Records, Case Records, Protected Health Information and
Personally Identifiable Information. '

Confidential Information also includes any and all information owned or managed by
the State of NH - created, received from or on behalf of the Department of Health and
Human Services {DHHS) or accessed in the course of performing contracted
services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and disposition is governed by
state or federal law or regulation. This infermation includes, but is not limited to
Protected Health Information (PHI), Personal Information (PI), Personal Financial
Information (PFI), Federal Tax Information (FTI), Social Security Numbers (SSN),
Payment Card Industry (PCI), and or other sensitive and confidentia! information.

4, “End User” means any person or entity (e.g., contractor, contractor's employee,
business associate, subcontractor, other downstream user, etc.) that receives
DHHS data or derivative data in accordance with the terms of this Contract.

5. "HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and the
regulations promulgated thereunder.

6. ‘Incident’ means an act that potentially violates an explicit or implied security policy,
which includes attempts (either failed or successful) to gain unauthorized access to a
system or its data, unwanted disruption or denial of service, the unauthorized use of
a system for the processing or stoerage of data; and changes to system hardware,
firmware, or software characteristics without the owner's knowledge, instruction, or
consent. Incidents include the loss of data through theft or device misplacement, loss
or misplacement of hardcopy documents, and misrouting of physical or electronic

JW
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
DHHS Information
Security Requirements .9 -
Page 1 0f 9 pate 12~ 27 14



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

mail, all of which may have the potential to put the data at risk of unauthorized
access, use, disclosure, modification or destruction.

7. “Open Wireless Network™ means any network or segment of a network that is
not designated by the State of New Hampshire’s Department of Information
Technology or delegate as a protected network (designed, tested, and
approved, by means of the State, to transmit) will be considered an open
network and not adequately secure for the transmission of unencrypted PI, PFI,
PHI or confidential DHHS data.

8. “Personal Information” (or "PI") means information which can be used to distinguish
or trace an individual's identity, such as their name, social security number, personal
information as defined in New Hampshire RSA 359-C:19, biometric records, etc.,
alone, or when combined with other personal or identifying information which is linked
or linkable to a specific individual, such as date and place of birth, mother's maiden
name, etc.

9. “Privacy Rule” shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Heaith
Information at 45 C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United
States Department of Health and Human Services.

10. “Protected Health Information” {or “PHI") has the same meaning as provided in the
definition of “Protected Health Information” in the HIPAA Privacy Rule at 45 C.F.R. §
160.103.

11. “Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic
Protected Health Information at 45 C.F.R. Part 164, Subpart C, and amendments
thereto.

12. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means Protected Health Information that is
not secured by a technology standard that renders Protected Health Information
unusable, unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is
developed or endorsed by a standards developing organization that is accredited by
the American National Standards Institute.

I. RESPONSIBILITIES OF DHHS AND THE CONTRACTOR
A. Business Use and Disclosure of Confidential Information.

1. The Contractor must not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Confidential Information
except as reasonably necessary as outlined under this Contract. Further, Contractor,
including but not limited to all its directors, officers, employees and agents, must not
use, disclose, maintain or transmit PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation
of the Privacy and Security Rule.

2. The Contractor must not disclose any Confidential Information in response {o a

Ju

V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, in response to a
subpoena, etc., without first notifying DHHS so that DHHS has an opportunity to
consent or object to the disclosure.

3. If DHHS notifies the Contractor that DHHS has agreed to be bound by additional
restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security safeguards of PHI
pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Contractor must be bound by such
additional restrictions and must not disclose PHI in violation of such additional
restrictions and must abide by any additional security safeguards.

4. The Contractor agrees that DHHS Data or derivative there from disclosed to an End
User must only be used pursuant to the terms of this Contract.

5. The Contractor agrees DHHS Data obtained under this Contract may not be used for
any other purposes that are not indicated in this Contract.

6. The Contractor agrees to grant access to the data to the authorized representatives
of DHHS for the purpose of inspecting to confirm compliance with the terms of this
Contract.

. METHODS OF SECURE TRANSMISSION OF DATA

1. Application Encryption, If End User is transmitting DHHS data containing
Confidential Data between applications, the Contractor attests the applications have
been evaluated by an expert knowledgeable in cyber security and that said
application's encryption capabilities ensure secure transmission via the internet.

2. Computer Disks and Portable Storage Devices. End User may not use computer disks
or portable storage devices, such as a thumb drive, as a method of transmitting DHHS
data.

3. Encrypted Email. End User may only employ email to transmit Confidential Data if
email is encrypted and being sent to and being received by email addresses of
persons authorized to receive such information.

4. Encrypted Web Site. If End User is employing the Web to transmit Confidential
Data, the secure socket layers (SSL) must be used and the web site must be
secure. SSL encrypts data transmitted via a Web site.

5. File Hosting Services, also known as File Sharing Sites. End User may not use file
hosting services, such as Dropbox or Google Cloud Storage, to transmit
Confidential Data.

6. Ground Mail Service. End User may only transmit Confidential Data via cerfified ground
mail within the continental U.S. and when sent to a named individual.

7. Laptops and PDA. If End User is employing portable devices to transmit
Confidential Data said devices must be encrypted and password-protected.

8. Open Wireless Networks. End User may not transmit Confidential Data via an open

Ju
V5. Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contfractor Initials
DHHS Information
Security Requirements j-2-(9

Page 3 of 9 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

wireless network. End User must employ a virtual private network (VPN) when
remotely transmitting via an open wireless network.

9. Remote User Communication. If End User is employing remote communication to
access or transmit Confidential Data, a virtual private network (VPN) must be
installed on the End User's mobile device(s) or laptop from which information will be
transmitted or accessed.

10. SSH File Transfer Protocol {(SFTP), also known as Secure File Transfer Protocol. If
End User is employing an SFTP to transmit Confidential Data, End User will
structure the Folder and access privileges to prevent inappropriate disclosure of
information. SFTP felders and sub-folders used for transmitting Confidential Data will
be coded for 24-hour auto-deletion cycle (i.e. Confidential Data will be deleted every 24
hours).

11. Wireless Devices. If End User is transmitting Confidential Data via wireless devices, all
data must be encrypted to prevent inappropriate disclosure of information.

. RETENTION AND DISPOSITION OF IDENTIFIABLE RECORDS

The Contracter will only retain the data and any derivative of the data for the duration of this
Contract. After such time, the Contractor will have 30 days to destroy the data and any
derivative in whatever form it may exist, unless, otherwise required by law or permitted
under this Contract. To this end, the parties must:

A. Retention

1. The Contractor agrees it will not store, transfer or process data collected in
connection with the services rendered under this Contract outside of the United
States. This physical location requirement shall also apply in the implementation of
cloud computing, cloud service or cloud storage capabilities, and includes backup
data and Disaster Recovery locations.

2. The Contractor agrees to ensure proper security monitcring capabilities are in
place to detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems
and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

3. The Contractor agrees to provide security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

4. The Contractor agrees to retain all electronic and hard copies of Confidential Data
in a secure location and identified in section IV. A.2

5. The Contractor agrees Confidential Data stored in a Cloud must be in a
FedRAMP/HITECH compliant solution and comply with all applicable statutes and
regulations regarding the privacy and security. All servers and devices must have
currently-supported and hardened operating systems, the latest anti-viral, anti-
hacker, anti-spam, anti-spyware, and anti-malware utilities. The envirocnment, as a
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whole, must have aggressive intrusion-detection and firewall protection.

6. The Contractor agrees to and ensures its complete cooperation with the State's
Chief Information Officer in the detection of any security vulnerability of the hosting
infrastructure.

B. Disposition

1. If the Contractor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems (or its
sub-contractor systems), the Contractor will maintain a documented process for
securely disposing of such data upon request or contract termination; and will
obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
Contractor or any subcontractors as a part of ongoing, emergency, and or disaster
recovery operations. When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of
New Hampshire data shall be rendered unrecoverable via a secure wipe program
in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure deletion and media
sanitization, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example,
degaussing) as described in NIST Special Publication 800-88, Rev 1, Guidelines
for Media Sanitization, Naticnal Institute of Standards and Technology, U. S.
Department of Commerce. The Contractor will document and certify in writing at
time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the Department
upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to
demonstrate data has been properly destroyed and validated. Where applicable,
regulatory and professional standards for retention requirements will be jointly
evaluated by the State and Contractor prior to destruction.

2. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to destroy all hard copies of Confidential Data using a
secure method such as shredding.

3. Unless otherwise specified, within thirty (30) days of the termination of this
Contract, Contractor agrees to completely destroy all electronic Confidential Data
by means of data erasure, also known as secure data wiping.

{V. PROCEDURES FOR SECURITY

A. Contractor agrees to safeguard the DHHS Data received under this Contract, and any
derivative data or files, as follows:

1. The Contractor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department
confidential information collected, processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery
of contracted services. :

2. The Contractor will maintain policies and procedures to protect Department
confidentiai information throcughout the information lifecycle, where applicable, (from
creation, transformation, use, stocrage and secure destruction) regardless of the
media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).
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3. The Contractor will maintain appropriate authentication and access controls to
contractor systems that collect, transmit, or store Department confidential information

where applicable.
Ve

4. The Contractor will ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to
detect potential security events that can impact State of NH systems and/or
Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

5. The Contractor will provide regular security awareness and education for its End
Users in support of protecting Department confidential information.

6. If the Contractor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement
supporting the services for State of New Hampshire, the Contractor will maintain a
program of an internal process or processes that defines specific security
expectations, and monitoring compliance to security requirements that at a minimum
match those for the Contractor, including breach notification requirements.

7. The Contractor will work with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable
State of New Hampshire and Department system access and authorization policies
and procedures, systems access forms, and computer use agreements as part of
obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will be
completed and signed by the Contractor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to
system access being authorized.

8. If the Department determines the Contractor is a Business Associate pursuant to 45
CFR 160.103, the Contractor will execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement
(BAA) with the Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the
agreement.

9. The Contractor will work with the Department at its request to complete a System
Management Survey. The purpose of the survey is to enable the Department and
Contractor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the Contractor engagement. The survey will be completed
annually, or an alternate time frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by
the Contractor, or the Department may request the survey be completed when the
scope of the engagement between the Department and the Contractor changes.

10. The Contractor will not store, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire
or Department data offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unless
prior express written consent is obtained from the Information Security Office
leadership member within the Department.

11. Data Security Breach Liability. In the event of any security breach Contractor shall
make efforts to investigate the causes of the breach, promptly take measures to
prevent future breach and minimize any damage or loss resulting from the breach.
The State shall recover from the Contractor all costs of response and recovery from
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the breach, including but not limited to: credit monitering services, mailing costs and
costs associated with website and telephone call center services necessary due to
the breach.

12. Contractor must, comply with all applicable statutes and regulations regarding the
privacy and security of Confidential Information, and must in all other respects
maintain the privacy and security of Pl and PHI at a level and scope that is not less
than the level and scope of requirements applicable to federal agencies, including,
but not limited to, provisions of the Privacy Act of 1974 (§ U.S.C. § 552a), DHHS
Privacy Act Regulations (45 C.F.R. §5b), HIPAA Privacy and Security Rules (45
C.F.R. Parts 160 and 164) that govern protections for individually identifiable health
information and as applicable under State law.

13. Contractor agrees to establish and maintain appropriate administrative, technical, and
physical safeguards to protect the confidentiality of the Confidential Data and to
prevent unauthorized use or access to it. The safeguards must provide a level and
scope of security that is not less than the level and scope of security requirements
established by the State of New Hampshire, Department of Information Technology.
Refer to Vendor Resources/Procurement at https://Awww.nh.gov/doit/vendorfindex.htm
for the Department of Information Technology policies, guudelmes standards, and
procurement information relating to vendors.

14, Contractor agrees to maintain a documented breach notification and incident
response process. The Contractor will notify the State's Privacy Officer and the
State's Security Officer of any security breach immediately, at the email addresses
provided in Section VI. This includes a confidential information breach, computer
security incident, or suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New
Hampshire systems that connect to the State of New Hampshire network.

156. Contractor must restrict access to the Confidential Data obtained under this
Contract to only those authorized End Users who need such DHHS Data to
perform their official duties in connection with purposes identified in this Contract.

16. The Contractor must ensure that all End Users:

a. comply with such safeguards as referenced in Section IV A. above,
implemented to protect Confidential Information that is furnished by DHHS
under this Contract from loss, theft or inadvertent disclosure.

b. safeguard this information at all times.

¢. ensure that laptops and other electronic devices/media containing PHI, PI, or
PFl are encrypted and password-protected.

d. send emails containing Confidential Information only if encrypted and being
sent to and being received by email addresses of persons authorized to
receive such information.
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e. limit disclosure of the Confidential information to the extent permitted by law.

Confidential Information received under this Contract and individually
identifiable data derived from DHHS Data, must be stored in an area that is
physically and technologically secure from access by unauthorized persons
during duty hours as well as non-duty hours (e.g., door locks, card keys,
biometric identifiers, etc.).

g. only authorized End Users may transmit the Confidential Data, including any
derivative files containing personally identifiable information, and in all cases,
such data must be encrypted at all times when in transit, at rest, or when
stored on portable media as required in section IV above.

h. in all other instances Confidential Data must be maintained, used and
disclosed using appropriate safeguards, as determined by a risk-based
assessment of the circumstances involved.

i. understand that their user credentials (user name and password) must not be
shared with anyone. End Users will keep their credential information secure.
This applies to credentials used to access the site directly or indirectly through
a third party application,

Contractor is responsible for oversight and compliance of their End Users. DHHS
reserves the right to conduct onsite inspections to monitor compliance with this
Contract, including the privacy and security requirements provided in herein, HIPAA,
and other applicable laws and Federal regulations until such time the Confidential Data
is disposed of in accordance with this Contract.

V. LOSS REPORTING

The Contractor must notify the State's Privacy Officer and Security Officer of any
Security Incidents and Breaches immediately, at the email addresses provided in
Section VI.

The Contractor must further handle and report Incidents and Breaches involving PHI in
accordance with the agency’s documented Incident Handling and Breach Notification
procedures and in accordance with 42 C.F.R. §§ 431.300 - 306. In addition to, and
notwithstanding, Coniractor’s compliance with all applicable obligations and procedures,
Contractor’s procedures must also address how the Contractor will:

1. Identify Incidents;

2. Determine if personally identifiable information is involved in Incidents;

3. Report suspected or confirmed Incidents as required in this Exhibit or P-37;
4

Identify and convene a core response group to determine the risk level of Incidents
and determine risk-based responses to Incidents; and
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V5, Last update 10/09/18 Exhibit K Contractor Initials , r Z (6'
DHHS Information
Security Requirements —
Page 8 of 9 pate_ (¥ T2 "9



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit K
DHHS Information Security Requirements

5. Determine whether Breach ngtification is required, and, if so, identify appropriate
Breach notification methods, timing, source, and contents from among different
options, and bear costs associated with the Breach notice as well as any mitigation

measures.

Incidents and/or Breaches that implicate Pl must be addressed and reported, as
applicable, in accordance with NH RSA 359-C:20.

VI. PERSONS TC CONTACT
A. DHHS Privacy Officer:
DHHSPrivacyOfficer@dhhs.nh.gov

B. DHHS Security Officer:
DHHSInformationSecurityOffice@dhhs.nh.gov
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE

1, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hercby certify that BETHANY CHRISTIAN
SERVICES OF NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND is a Michigan Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on January 06, 2017. [ further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

.Busincss ID: 762740 i
Cenrtificate Number: 0004513432

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 10th day of May A.D. 2019.

Gor Lok

William M. Gardner
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF VOTE

I, Nicole Johnson, do hereby certify that:
(Name of the elected Officer of the Agency; cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected Officer of Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England.
(Agency Name)

2. The following is a true copy of the resolution duly adopted at a meeting of the Board of Directors of

the Agency duly held on December 2, 2019;
(Date)

RESOLVED: That the Director of the New Hampshire Branch of Bethany Christian Services of New England
(Title of Contract Signatory)

is hereby authorized on behalf of this Agency to enter into the said contract with the State and to
execute any and all documents, agreements and other instruments, and any amendments, revisions,

or modifications thereto, as he/she may deem necessary, desirable or appropriate.

3. The forgoing resolutions have not been amended or revoked, and remain in full force and effect as of

the 2 day of December, 2019.
{Date Contract Signed)

4. Janice Lessard Peightell is the duly elected Director of the NH Branch of Bethany Christian Services of Northern

New England.
{Name of Contract Signatory) (Title of Contract Signatory)

of the Agency.
/{/ ob-Oo hnso!]

" {Signature of the Elected Officer)

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
County of KR"C\L-\\"‘H——

A
The forgoing instrument was acknowledged before me this Q' o=  dayof B‘“‘*5«20 [ a’

Nicole Johnsn

{Name of Elected Officer of the Agen.cy) M Q g )

(Notary Public/Justice of the Peace)

By

(NOTARY SEAL)
8HARON PACKARD, Notary Publle

wmmmzlm I ',,"I"

Commission Expires: -
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THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT:

If the certificato holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provislons or be andorsed.

If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subjoct to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER 616-284-3018 | ERHEACT JEAN NOLF
BUITEN & ASSOCIATES, LLC, FAX N
5738 FOREMOST DRIVE, SE _tm_m,.ﬁ.x[vﬂl%sma | {42, no):816-956-8057
GRAND RAPIDS, MI 49546 | §2iikss. lean.nolf@buiteninsurance.com
PAUL S BUITEN
INSURER{S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAKC #
msurer a : PHILADELPHIA INDEMNITY INS CO 18058

msured BETHANY gngEAN gggaggg INC wsurer B : ACCIDENT FUND INS CO OF AMER 10166

BETHANY CHRISTIAN

USA LLC; BETHANY CHRISTIAN msuren ¢ . TRAVELERS INS CO 25615

SERVICES GLOBAL LLC INSURER D :

901 EASTERN AVE NE

PO BOX 254 INSURERE ;

GRAND RAPIDS, M] 49501-0294 INSURER F :

c ER: REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIQD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

INsa TYPE OF INSURANCE b POLICY NUMBER e | e LTS
A | X | COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
| coamsuaoe [ X | ocour PHPK2023144 09/01/2019|09/01/2020 | PAFAREI GRSt ncn |8 1,000,000
|| PROFESSIONAL $3 MIL AGG/$1 MIL OCC 08/01/2019 | 09/01/2020 | mep Exp (A one parson)__| 50,000
|| SEX ABUSE/MOLESTA $3 MIL AGG/$1 MIL EA ACT | 09/01/2019|09/01/2020 | pERSONAL & ADVINIURY | 3 1,000,000
| GEN'I. AGGREGATE uun IES PER: | GENERAL AGGREGATE 5 3,000,000
| POUCY PRODUCTS - COMPIOP AGG. | § 3,000,000
QTHER: H
A | auTomoBaE LABLITY COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT s 1,000,000
| X | aNY auTO PHPK2023144 09/01/2019 | 09/01/2020 | popiLY INJURY (Per parsony | §
OWNED SCHEDULED .
| AUTOSONLY AUTOS BODILY INJURY {Per accident}| §
X | RS omy RPREND R s
X |COMP/COLL| |500/1000 D 3
A | X |umsreeauas | X | occur EACH OCCURRENGE R 10,000,000
EXCESS LAB CLAIMS-MADE PHUB689304 09/01/201909/01/2020 [ , oo oo R 10,000,000
oep | X | revenmions 10000 ABUSE/MOL s 5,000,000
PER . OTH-
® e sRe e N AR
PROPRIETORPARTVEREXECUTVE [-_L.] in rucvaws?u 1213172018 [12/3112018 [ ¢ 00 accipent : 1,000,000
lﬁfanun:m F‘mmﬁ( L BLK WAIVER OF SUBROGATION E.L DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE| § 1,000,000
1 yes. de: boumer T E.L DISEASE - POLICY LiMIT | § 1,000,000
CEMPLOYEE THEFT 105663451 09/01/2019|09/01/2020 |600,000 5,000 DED
A [CYBER/MEDIA LIAB PHSD1471833/PHSD1471835 | 09/01/2018|09/01/2020 [EA AGGR 3,000,000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VERICLES {(ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Scheduls, may be sttached if more space s required)
RE: 183 HIGH STREET, CANDIA NH

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATION

NEW HAMPSHIRE DEPT OF HEALTH
& HUMAN SERVICES; DIVISION FOR

CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

129 PLEASANT ST

CONCORD, NH 03301 3857

NEWHAMP
SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE

THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE
PAUL S BUITEN

ACORD 25 (2016/03)

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD



Bethany'

CHRISTIAN SERVICES

MISSION STATEMENT:
Bethany demonstrates the love and compassion of Jesus Christ by protecting
and enhancing the lives of children and families through quality social services.

NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND OFFICES
PO Box 320, Candia, NH 03034-0320 * T:603.483.2886 * F:603.483.0161 * bescandin@bethany.org
PO Box 233, Barre, VT 05461-0233 * T:802.877.6500 * F:802.877.6506 * besvermont@bethyny.org
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Plante & Moran, PLLC

plante S o

534 Front Avenuer N.W.
Grand Rapids, M1 49504

moran Teol: 616.774.8221

Fax: 516.774.0702
plantarmoran.com

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
Bethany Christian Services

Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bethany Christian Services and its
subsidiaries (the "Organization”), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December
31, 2018 and 2017 and the related consolidated statements of activities and changes in net assets, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consofidated financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally. accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinions
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all materiat respects, the
financial position of Bethany Christian Services and its subsidiaries as of December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the

changes in their net assets, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As described in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements, the Organization adopted the provisions of
Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities, as of Décember 31, 2018. Our opinion is not
modified with respect to this matter.

: DPRAXITY

Impamarieg Butie st Glolalty



To the Board of Directors
Bethany Christian Services

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 26, 2019 on our
consideration of Bethany Christian Services' internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other matters. The
purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal-control over financial reporting and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards in considering Bethany Christian Services' internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.
74¢.¢L § Moran, Prot

March 26, 2019



Bethany Christian Services

Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017
Assets
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,143,637 $ 3,562,701
Investments (Note 4) 28,958,055 33,692,845
Receivables - Net of allowances 13,517,067 14,144,705
Prepaid expenses and other current assets: )
Prepaid expenses 1,360,722 1,285,223
Deposits 189,629 311,868
Total current assets 48,169,110 52,997,342
Property and Equipment - Net (Note 5) 18,587,682 17,715,895
Other Assets 220,000 220,000
Investment in Unconsolidated Affiliate (Note 4) 561,518 538,148
Total assets $ 67538310 $§ 71,471,385
Liabilities and Net Assets
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 3,089,442 § 2,839,164
Accrued employee compensation and benefits 6,366,302 6,453,162
Deferred revenue 2,219,169 2,544,086
Other liabilities 856,187 -
Current portion of long-term debt (Note 8) 635,865 4,831,503
Total current liabilities 13,166,965 16,667,915
Long-term Debt - Net of current portion (Note 8) 6,029,583 3,506,743
Annuities Payable (Note 6) 245,625 297,235
Total liabilities 19,442,173 20,471,893
Net Assets
Net assets without donor restrictions:
Undesignated 27,700,384 29,620,718
Board designated {(Note 11) 17,529,809 19,569,081
Total net assets without donor restrictions 45,230,193 49,189,799
Net assets with donor restrictions (Notes 11 and 12) 2,865,944 1,809,683
Total net assets 48,096,137 50,999,492
Total liabilities and net assets $ 67538310 § 71,471,385

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 3



Bethany Christian Services

Consolidated Statement of Activities and Changes in Net Assets

Revenus, Gains, and Other Support
Contributions
Child support
Service lees
Investment (loss) income

QOther income
Total revenue, gains, and other support
Net Assots Released from Restrictions

Total revenua, gains, other supporl, and net assets
released from restrictions

Expenses

Program sxpenses:
Adoption
Foster care
Intermational social services
Refugee and immigrant services
Counseling
Residential treatment
Sponsorship
Other programs
Youth services

Total program expenses

Support services:
Management and general
Fundraising

Total support services
Total expensas
(Decrezse) ncrease in Net Assets - Before transfer of assels
Transfer of Assets
(Decrease) Increase in Not Assets
Net Aasets - Beginning of year

Net Asasts - End of year

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 ' 2017
Without Donor With Donor Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total Restrictions Restrictions Total
17,126,491 $ 1937674 § 19,064,165 $ 16,476,922 § 483,441 3§ 16,960,363
82,531,401 - 82,531,401 74,489,333 - 74,489,333
20,657,512 - 20,657,512 23,349,440 - 23,349,440
(2,347,409) (55.089) {2,402,498) 3,674,954 95,629 3,970,583
1,382,237 - 1,382,237 1,305,526 - 1.305.526
119,350,232 1,882,585 121,232,817 119,496,175 579,070 120,075,245
826,334 (826,334) - 693,427 (683,427) -
120,176,566 1,058,251 121,232,817 120,189,602 (114,357) 120,075,245
22,281,764 - 22,281,764 22,605,733 - 22,605,733
33,988,537 - 33,988,537 30,934,269 - 30,934,269
1,671,937 - 1,671,837 1,336,642 - 1,336,642
28,178,008 - 28,178,008 25,199,502 - 25,199,502
10,753,754 - 10,753,754 10,601,627 - 10,601,627
2117116 - 2,117,116 2,016,925 - 2,018,925
882,244 - 882,244 826,860 - 826,860
2,832,585 - 2,832,585 2,764,950 - 2,794,950
2,572,251 - 2,572,251 2463,194 - 2,453,194
105,278,196 - 105,278,186 98,779,702 - 98,779,702
11,625,750 B 11,625,750 10,889,423 - 10,989,423
6,378,039 - 6,376,039 5,929,597 - 5,929,597
18,001,789 - 15,001,789 16,919.020 - 16,919,020
123,279,985 - 123,279,985 115,898,722 - 115,698,722
(3,103,419} 1,056,251 {2,047,168) 4,480,880 (114,357) 4,378,523
(856,187) - (856,187) - - R
{3,959,606) 1,056,251 (2,903,355} 4,490,880 (114,357) 4,376,523
49,189,799 1,809,693 50,999,492 44 698,919 1,924,050 46,622,969
45,230,193 $ 2,865,944 § 43,096,137 $ 49,189,799 § 1,809,693 § 60,999,492




Bethany Christian Services

Consolidated Statement of Functional Expense

Operating Expanses
Salaries
Fringes
Taxes
Professional fees
Supplas
Telephone
Poslage
Occupancy
Printing
Informaltion technology
Equipment and furnishings
Traved
Conferences and meetings
Advertising
Special assistance
Oversesas confibutions
Program developmentl
Payment processing fees
Educational and p
Miscallaneous fund raising
Bad debt
Misceflaneous
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

tiorial matedaty

Year Ended December 31, 2018

Retugee and
Youth Intemational Immigrant Residential Other Management
Adoplion  Foster Core  _ Services  Social Services Services Counseling  Treatment Sponsorship _Programs  and General Fundraising Total
$11.952625 $12.972.755 $1.048471 146,694 $11.810404 § 5503300 $1286832 $ 161405 $1243964 $ 6.321.108 32,604,548 § 55,158,305
2,294,850 2512972 310,000 34,173 2,410,164 1,008,487 247,683 45,825 249,815 1,068,278 492,965 10,685,191
878,600 851,311 75,089 10,434 872,432 411,263 85611 11,437 81,788 444,186 180,992 4,030,293
637,377 239,018 254,210 53,272 1,348,733 7074 978 143,162 117,007 1,212,182 880,492 5,233,503
188,835 138,348 63,832 1,168 174,409 02,488 26,567 511 6,112 60,180 11,431 741,080
372 284,154 9,594 2752 281,224 142,768 5,708 1973 19,011 49,357 26,320 1,126,434
171.690 42,30 1.602 620 18,819 28,850 1,008 2,480 3,354 68,866 135,820 473,418
1,591,888 1,251,728 181,422 5,581 1.237.227 843,001 83,700 B804 13,143 273,233 143,042 5,385,567
149,002 43,563 1,778 274 25733 95,577 469 9,082 35428 38,267 403.2¢1 802,585
438,192 478,180 43,808 10,155 489,694 177,288 4718 4,358 29,078 20,142 64,204 1.800,785
252, 494 142,531 18,167 - 187.372 46,374 17,348 304 32,200 71,528 26768 773.082
787,243 1,146,289 35,168 49,238 756,273 483,663 21.me 52,372 139,650 527,096 200,447 4,295,383
220,259 221,084 17.591 1.643 170498 75,388 8,773 300 50,587 209,384 32,082 1,007,349
664,623 348.851 7.398 - 114,982 569,884 448 24,953 32,048 383,760 29,014 2,208,557
B35342 12,858.015 485,003 - 8,015,223 837,264 212,255 2,660 120,047 - 1" 23,476,850
14,753 - - 1,200,479 - - - 332,549 201,887 - - 1,848,668
57 - - - 617 - - - 7533 - 3 74 8,281
288,327 2,331 n 1,505 579 21,350 - 5241 42,897 2,808 2,982 348,050
9,860 9,193 20 827 5912 9,870 s41 83 19,274 183,839 6,822 248,150
- - - - - - - - 67,714 - 852,747 1,020,461
45,672 22,058 - - - 14141 10,877 - (4]} - - 02,547
323,438 172,186 7.012 154,317 70,179 43,715 15,500 1.310 137,932 228,148 48,853 1,200,488
138,477 140,812 21,878 757 209,534 43,702 53,145 81.605 136,510 482,882 33,220 1,322,400
$22,281,764 $33,988,637 $2,672,251 $ 1,671,837 $28,173,008 $10,753754 $2,117,116 $ 882244 $2,832585 4 11,625,750 § 6,378,03% $123,279.945
5

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Bethany Christian Services

~ Consolidated Statement of Functional Expense

Operating Expenses
Salaries
Fringes
Taxes
Professional fees
Supplies
Telephone
Postage
Occupancy
Printing
information technology
Equipment and fumishings
Travel
Conferences and mestings
Adventising
Special assist’ance
Overseas contributions
Program development
Payment processing fees

Educational and promaotional malerials

Misceflanaous fund raising
Bad deb\

Misceflaneous
Depreciation

Total Operating Expesnses

Year Ended December 31, 2017

Refugee and
Youth Intemational Immigrant Residential Other Management
Adoption Foster Care Services  Social Senvices Services C ling  Treatment Sponsorship _Programs  and General Fundraising Totad
$11.937.854 $11,671,485 $1,001909 § 130,095 $10,454981 § 5406850 $1.213052 § 155353 $1377.185 § 5867690 $ 2090470 § 51307922
2,674,571 2,449,300 305,350 33870 2,359,488 087,209 252465 48,910 355,412 1,058,672 471,002 10,996,439
877,292 858,643 72,274 @268 768781 397,876 90,143 11,208 101,705 420427 154,737 3,763,535
554.694_‘ 193,154 201,444 £9,181 1,174,875 435,381 1,260 194 488 50,545 852,034 773,808 4,880,878
179,784 128,985 58,687 489 188,195 72,187 29175 . 13 39,574 80,274 18,280 754,723
314,630 276,203 8,802 438 197,979 146 452 X173 - 27,107 38,849 24,296 1,035777
178,253 40,065 737 104 15645 21,448 847 2,118 5,801 81,807 107,505 454,128
1,787,591 1,134,873 88,690 4,051 1,245,123 618,108 81,525 39 124,574 276.843 113,875 5,458,132
137,33 47 411 1,877 275 24,758 32,380 489 21,834 20,413 70,117 424,324 781,228
421,647 461,871 3593 2,797 351650 165,148 37,569 20,869 30,250 9,957 37,238 1,575,045
48 890 28,850 3.937 8 38,883 17,028 8,178 - 8,974 28,168 5470 188,390
800,352 1,049,153 50,727 41,763 €38,275 490,333 26717 368,127 54,847 513,883 278,378 3,878,558
282,305 165,503 35,727 1,050 110,650 81,577 2,687 1,157 54,074 196,523 147,508 1,088,775
822,662 387,346 8,772 - 114,481 490,445 300 13,335 43,239 303,522 4,169 2,256 511
878,815 11,718,782 468,588 40 7.245,268 1,062,858 215,022 1,678 206,713 - 5,322 21,604,085
218.577 - - 836,461 . - - 2684 524 1,038 - - 1.418,601
7.000 - - 6.509 1,568 B - .. - - - 15,167
308682 1.997 11 1,174 855 20,864 - 3,392 35,151 4,506 2,890 AR
17,223 21,474 382 196 4118 0,808 863 182 6,808 139,904 73,637 275,208
- - - - - - - - - - 1,110,858 1,110,858
7,692 16,418 - - 1,000 45,750 - - - 38,000 - 109,858
215,188 152,086 12,994 88,238 84,247 86,173 3,918 3,333 83018 366,511 58,958 1,144 961
157,072 120,688 17,284 445 221,683 33,738 50,956 47,598 187,284 488,838 27,273 1,312,657
$22,805,733 $30,934,268 $2,463,194 § 1,338,842 325,199,502 $10,601,627 $2,016,925 $ 8525860 $2794,950 § 10,980,423 § 5929597 3115608, 722
6

See notes to consolidated financial statements.



Bethany Christian Services

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Years Ended December 31, 2018 and 2017

2018 2017

Cash Flows from Operating Activities
{Decrease) increase in net assets $ (2,903,355) $ 4,376,523
Adjustments to reconcile {decrease) increase in net assets to net cash and
cash equivalents from operating activities:

Depreciation 1,322,400 1,312,657
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 3,230 69,497
Bad debt expense 92,547 109,858
Net realized and unrealized losses {(gains) on investments 3,793,400 (2,679,949)
Earnings on unconsolidated affiliate (92,370) (42,335)
Distributions from unconsolidated affiliate 69,000 64,000
Net present value adjustment of annuities payable (21,081) 27,754
Donor permanent endowment contributions (4,577) (3,620)

Changes in operating assets and liabilities that provided (used) cash
and cash equivalents:

Receivables 535,001 (1,039,990)
Prepaid expenses and other assets 46,740 (554,029)
Accounts payable 250,278 176,350
Accrued and other liabilities 769,327 929,436
Deferred revenue (324,917) {292,706)
Net cash and cash equivalents provided by operating
activities 3,535,713 2,453,446
Cash Flows from Investing Activities
Purchase of property and equipment {2,198,537) (2,595,486)
Proceeds from disposition of property and equipment 1,120 911,333
Purchases of investments (795,946) (3,786,856)
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 1,737,336 3,487,031
Net cash and cash equivalents used in investing activities (1.256,027) (1,983,978}
Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from debt 1,654,670 864,168
Payments on debt (3,327,468) (1,118,727)
Payments on annuities payable (30,529) (39,986}
Payments on revolving credit facilities ) 8,500,000 750,000
Draws on revolving credit facilities {8,500,000) (750,000)
Permanently restricted contributions received 4,577 3,620
Net cash and cash equivalents used in financing activities {1.698,750) (290,925)
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents : 580,936 178,543
Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of year 3,562,701 3,384,158
Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of year $ 4,143,637 $ 3,562,701
Supplemental Cash Flow Information - Cash paid for interest 5 237,553 § 185,722

See notes to consolidated financial statements. 7



Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 1 - Nature of Business

Bethany Christian Services (the "Organization™) is a not-for-profit corporation whose sources of revenue
are derived principally from public contributions, government grants, and service fees. The Organization
operates a child placement agency and provides such services as fostercare, pregnancy counseling,
adoptive services, and other related social services as may be appropriate in stabilizing and/or improving
human relationships and conditions. Currently, these services are provided in 38 home offices in 36 states
plus Washington, D.C., with the central business cffice located in Grand Rapids, Michigan. Approximately
68 and 62 percent of operating revenue in 2018 and 2017, respectively, was derived from services
provided under contract with governmental units.

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Organization and all of its wholly owned
subsidiaries, which include all of the various branches and related legal entities including Bethany
Christian Services USA, LLC; Bethany Christian Services Global, LLC; and Bethany Christian Foundation,
LLC. All material intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of consolidated financia! statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated
financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period.
Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Basis of Presentation

The Organization prepares its consclidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting
principles outlined in the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants’ Audit and Accounting Guide
for Not-for-Profit Entities and accounting standards for financial statements of not-for-profit organizations.

Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all highly fiquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less
when purchased to be cash equivalents.

Concentration of Credit Risk Arising from Deposit Accounts

The Organization maintains cash balances at several banks. Accounts at each institution are insured by
the Federal Deposit Insurance Corperation up to $250,000 and certain other federally managed programs.
As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization had depository accounts with a financial institution
in excess of federally insured limits.

Investments

Investments are stated at fair value, except for the investment in unconsolidated affiliate, which is
recorded using the equity method. Gains or losses on investments are reported in the consolidated
statement of activities and changes in net assets as increases or decreases in net assets without donor
restrictions unless their use is restricted by explicit donor stipulations or by law.



Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Receivables

Receivables are stated at invoice amounts. An allowance for doubtful accounts is established based on a
specific assessment of all invoices that remain unpaid following normal payment periods. In addition, a
general valuation allowance is established for other accounts receivable based on historical loss
experience. All amounts deemed uncollectible are charged against the allowance for doubtful accounts in
the period that determination is made. The allowance was $203,031 and $200,000 at December 31, 2018
and 2017, respectively.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost when purchased or at fair value at the date of donation and
are being depreciated on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. Costs of maintenance and
repairs are charged to expense when incurred. Estimated useful lives are 40 years for buildings, 20 years
for land improvements (or the lease term, whichever is shorter), 10 years for furniture and fixtures, and
three to five years for vehicles.

The Organization reports gifts of property and equipment as unrestricted support, unless explicit donor
stipulations specify how the donated assets must be used. Gifts of property and equipment with explicit
restrictions that specify how the assets are to be used and gifts of cash or cther assets that must be used
to acquire property and equipment are reported as restricted support.

Certain property and equipment were acquired with funds from grant contracts that include the option for
the grantor to require reversion of title at the end of the grant contract. These assets are insignificant to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole and were fully depreciated as of December 31, 2018 and
2017.

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue consists primarily of adoption fees billed to prospective parents and collected in
advance of providing adoption services and grant revenue received in advance of expenditures incurred.

Classification of Net Assets

Net assets of the Organization are classified based on the presence or absence for doner-imposed
restrictions. ‘

Net assets without donor restrictions: Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed restrictions or the
donor-imposed restrictions have expired or been fulfilled. Net assets in this category may be expended for
any purpose in performing the primary cbjectives of the Organization. )

Net assets with donor restrictions: Net assets subject o stipulations imposed by donors and grantors.
Some donor restrictions are temporary in nature; those restrictions will be met by actions of the
Organization or by the passage of time. Other donor restrictions are perpetual in nature, whereby the
donor has stipulated the funds be maintained in perpetuity.

Earnings, gains, and losses on donor-restricted net assets are classified as net assets without donor
restrictions unless specifically restricted by the donor or by applicable state law.

Contributions

Contributions of cash and other assets, including unconditional promises to give in the future, are reported
as revenue when received, measured at fair value. Donor promises to give in the future are recorded at
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Contributions resulting from split-interest agreements,
measured at the time the agreements are entered into, are based on the difference between the fair value
of the assets received or promised and the present value of the obligation to the third-party recipient(s)
under the contract.

9



Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Contributions without donor-imposed restrictions and contributions with donor-imposed time or purpose
restrictions that are met in the same period as the gift are both reported as contributions without deonor
restrictions.

Grant Revenue

Grant revenue received for grants determined to be exchange transactions is recognized as services are
provided. Grant money received in excess of that earned is recorded as deferred revenue. Grant revenue
is primarily received for child support services.

Service Fee Revenue

Prospective parents involved in the domestic infant and international adoption process are charged a fee
for services, which consists of the home study, placement of the child, and supervision during the
postplacement probationary time period. The international adoption process also includes fees charged by
the QOrganization for acting as a liaison with the international agency. These fees are billed at the time the
home study is complete. The Organization's policy is to recognize a portion of the fee as revenue at the
time of home study completion and record a deferred revenue related to the remaining balance. A portion
of the deferred revenue is recognized at the time of placement, with the remainder balance being
recognized when the adoption is closed.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributable to one or more
program or supporting functions of the Organization. Those expenses include salaries and wages,
employee benefits, depreciation, and occupancy expenses. Salaries, wages, and associated employee
benefits are allocated based on estimates of time and effort. Depreciation and occupancy expenses are
allocated based on square footages. All other expenses are allocated based on direct identification and
utilization. Although the methods of allocation used are considered appropriate, other methods could be
used that would produce different amounts.

income Taxes

The Qrganization is a not-for-profit corporation and is exempt from tax under the provisions of Internal
Revenue Code Section 501(c)(3).

Advertising Expense

Advertising expense is charged to income during the year in which it is incurred. Advertising expense for
2018 and 2017 was $2,206,557 and $2,256,611, respectively.

Transfer of Assets

On November 1, 2018, Bethany Christian Services of Mississippi (BCSM) entered into an assignment and
assumption agreement with a third-party nonprofit based in Alabama that provides adoption-related
services in Alabama and Mississippi. The agreement transfers certain assets and liabilities of BCSM to
this third-party organization. Operating revenue and expenses are those directly related to the purpose
and primary mission of the Organization; therefore, the transfer of assets was reported as nonoperating
expenses.

Risks and Uncertainties

The Organization invests in various investment securities. Investment securities are exposed to various
risks, such as interest rate, market, and credit risks. Due to the level of risk associated with certain
investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in the values of investment securities
will occur in the near term and that such changes could materially affect the amounts reported in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

10



Bethany Christian Services

‘ Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

The Organization's child support revenue category is made up of approximately 32 percent of contracts
with state and federal agencies for international refugee services as of December 31; 2018 and 2017.

Reclassification
Certain 2017 amounts have been reclassified to conform to the 2018 presentation.
Adoption of New Accounting Pronouncement

As of December 31, 2018, the Organization adopted Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-14, Not-for-
Profit Entities. This standard reguires net assets to be classified in two categones, net assets without
donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions, rather than the three previous classifications. In
addition, the underwater porticn of donor-restricted endowments is now reported as net assets with donor
restrictions. This standard also requires changes in the way certain information is aggregated and
reported by the Organization, including disclosures of quantitative and qualitative information about the
liquidity and availability of resources and the presentation of expenses by both functional and natural
classification. The standard also clarifies the definition of management and general and prohibits certain
expenses from being allocated out of management and general. As a result of the adoption of this
standard, the financial information for the year ended December 31, 2017 has been restated, as follows:
net assets of $1,623,883 previously reported as temporarily restricted net assets and net assets of
$185,810 previously reported as permanently restricted net assets have been combined into net assets
with donor restrictions.

Upcoming Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 6086), which will supersede the
current revenue recognition requirements in Topic 605, Revenue Recognition. The ASU is based on the
principle that revenue is recognized to depict the transfer of goods or services to customers in an amount
that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services. The ASU also requires additional disclosure about the nature, amount, tirning, and uncertainty of
revenue and cash flows arising from customer contracts, including significant judgments and changes in
judgments and assets recognized from costs incurred to obtain or fulfill a contract. The new guidance will
be effective for the Organization's year ending December 31, 2019. The ASU permits application of the
new revenue recognition guidance using one of two retrospective application methods. The Organization
has not yet determined which application method it will use. This Organization anticipates this standard will
have an impact on the consolidated financial statements specifically related to certain child support and
service fee contracts with customers. The Organization is continuing to assess all potential impacts.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which will supersede the current lease
requirements in ASC 840. The ASU requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and related lease
liability for all leases, with a limited exception for short-term leases. Leases will be classified as either
finance or operating, with the classification affecting the pattern of expense recognition in the statement of
operations. Currently, leases are classified as either capital or operating, with only. capital leases
recognized on the balance sheet. The reporting of lease-related expenses in the statements of operations
and cash flows will be generally consistent with the current guidance. The new lease guidance will be
effective for the Organization's year ending December 31, 2020 and will be applied using a modified
retrospective transition method to either the beginning of the eartiest period presented or the beginning of
the year of adoption. Upon implementation, the Organization's lease payment obligations will be
recognized at their estimated present value along with a corresponding right-of-use assel. Lease expense
recognition will be generally consistent with current practice.

11



Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 2 - Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and the Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made, which provides enhanced guidance to assist entities in
(1) evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as contributions (nonreciprocal transactions)
or as exchange (reciprocal transactions) and (2) determining whether a contribution is conditional. The
accounting guidance will result in more governmental contracts being accounted for as contributions and
may delay revenue recognition for certain grants and contributions that no longer meet the definition of
unconditional. The new guidance will be effective for the Organization’s year ending December 31, 2020
and will be applied on a modified prospective basis. The Organization does not expect the standard to
have a significant impact on the timing of revenue recognition for government grants and contracts but
has not yet determined the impact on the timing of recognition of foundation and individual grants and
contributions.

Subsequent Events

The consolidated financial statements and related disclosures include evaluation of events up through and
including March 26, 2019, which is the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be
issued.

Note 3 - Liquidity and Availability of Resources

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the consolidated statement of financial
position date, reduced by amounts not available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed
restrictions within one year of the consolidated statement of financial position date.

2018 2017
Cash and cash equivalents $ 4,143,637 $ 3,562,701
Accounts receivable - Net ‘ 13,517,067 14,144,705
Investments 28,958,055 33,692,845
Financial assets - At year end 46618 759 51.400 251
Less those unavailable for general expenditures within one year, due to
contractual or donor-imposed restrictions:
Restricted by donor with time or purpose restrictions 1,424,941 588,804
Restricted by donors in perpetuity 188,723 185,810
Less amounts unavailabie to management without board approval -
Board-designated endowments 16,653,319 18,590,627
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general ’
expenditures within one year $ 28351776 $§ 32,034,910

The Organization's endowment funds consist of donor-restricted endowments and board-designated
quasi-endowments. Income from donor-restricted endowments is not restricted for specific purposes and
is available for general expenditure. As described in Note 11, the Organization applies a spending rate of
5 percent; therefore, $876,490 and $978,454 of appropriations from the endowment will be available within
the next 12 months as of December 31, 2018'and 2017, respectively. Although the Organization does not
intend to spend from its quasi-endowment other than amounts appropriated for general expenditure as
part of its annual budget approval and appropriation process, amounts frem its quasi-endowment could be
made available if necessary.

The Organization's cash flows have seasonal vanations during the year attributable to service
reimbursement from various governmental entities and a concentration of approximately 40 percent of
contributions received in the fourth quarter. The Organization maintains a $5 million unsecured line of
credit that can be drawn upon to manage liquidity needs.

12



Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 4 - Investments

The details of the Organization's investments at December 31 are as follows:

2018 2017
Mutual funds $§ 22504415 % 26,342,411
Pooled funds 264,853 320,299
Exchange-traded funds 6,188,787 7,030,135
Subtotal 28,958,055 33,692,845
Investrnent in unconsolidated affiliate 561,518 538,148
Total $ 20519573 § 34,230,993
Investment (loss) income consists of the following:
2018 2017
Interest and dividends $ 1,391,467 % 1,279,847
Realized and unrealized (losses) gains {3,793,965) 2,690,736
Total $ {2,402,498) $ 3,970,583

During 2005, the Organization purchased a 40 percent minority interest in a limited liability company for
$802,060. This investment in the unconsolidated affiliate is accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. The Organization recognized income of approximately $49,000 and $42,000 and received a
distribution of $69,000 and $64,000 for the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. The
Organization is the sole tenant of the real estate limited liability company and has incurred lease expenses
of $179,346 in 2018 and $174,123 in 2017 related to an operating lease entered into in conjunction with
the investment.

Note 5 - Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are summarized as follows:

2018 2017

Land ' 3 1,456,935 $ 1,431,935
Land improvements 1,516,713 1,516,713
Buildings and improvements 22,073,129 20,947,064
Transportation equipment 591,794 565,551
Fumniture and fixtures 8,586,070 7,811,840
Construction in progress 553,785 381,722

Total cost 34,778,426 32,654,825
Accumutated depreciation 18,190,744 14,938,930

Net property and equipment $ 18587682 § 17,715,895

Depreciation expense for 2018 and 2017 was $1,322,400 and $1,312,657, respectively.

-As of December 31, 2018, the Organizalion has $2,300,000 of open commitments retated to capital
expenditures.
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Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 6 - Annuities Payable

The Organization sponsors a program in which donors may transfer assets to the Organization for the
right to receive a predetermined return during their lifetimes (an annuity). Based upon the terms of each
annuity agreement, the Organization determines its liability under the agreement using the estimated
present value of future payments to the annuitant. Such future payments are determined utilizing the life
expectancy of the annuitant (based on Annuity 2012 Table for males and females) and the interest rate
(discount rate), the applicable federal midterm rate for U.S. Treasury bills, in effect at the time of the gift.
At December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization recorded $245,625 and $297,235, respectively, in
annuities payable relating to such program.

Note 7 - Operating Leases

The Organization is obligated under operating leases prirmarily for office space and certain equipment and
vehicles that expire through 2023.

Future minimum annual commitments under these operating leases are as follows:

Years Ending

December 31 Amount
2019 $ 3,705,884
2020 2,660,259
2021 1,662,687
2022 1,121,147
2023 784,221

Tota! § 9,934,158
Total rent expense on these leases for 2018 and 2017 was $3,470,409 and $3,078,862, respectively.
Note 8 - Long-term Debt and Line of Credit

The Organizaticn has a $5,000,000 line of credit from the bank. There were no outstanding borrowings at
December 31, 2018 and 2017. The line of credit bears interest at LIBOR, plus 1.75 percent (an effective
rate of 4.25 and 3.31 percent at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively). The line of credit is
collateralized by the Organization's brokerage accounts and expires on May 9, 2019.

As of December 31, 2018 and 2017, the Organization had cutstanding notes payable as follows:
2018 2017

Barnabas Foundation note payable with principal payable upon the
termination of the loan and interest due quarterly. During 2018, the note
was amended to accrue interest at a fixed interest rate of 3.0 percent.
In 2017, interest accrued at a variable rate of LIBOR plus 1 percent (an
effactive rate of 2.56 percent at December 31, 2017). The loan matures
on June 21, 2020 and is unsecured $ 1,500,000 $ 1,500,000

Holland building promissory note collateralized by the Holland property
with principal payable upon the termination of the loan and interest due
monthly. Interest is a variable rate of LIBOR plus 1.75 percent (an
effective rate of 3.31 percent at December 31, 2017). The loan was
paid off in 2018 - 1,354,670

Holland building promissory note payable in monthly principal
instaliments of $10,860, including interest at a fixed rate of 5.0 percent.
The loan matures on July 5, 2023 and is collateralized by the Holland
property 1,635,898 -
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Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 8 - Long-term Debt and Line of Credit (Continued)
2018 2017

Term loan payable in monthly principal instaliments of $57,350, plus
interest at LIBOR plus 1.75 percent (an effective rate of 4.25 and 3.31
percent at December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively). The loan
matures on February 29, 2023 and is unsecured 3 2,809,550 § 3,381,834

52nd Street promissory note collateralized by the 52nd Street property,
with principal payable upen the termination of the loan and interest due
monthly. Interest is a variable rate of LIBOR plus 1.75 percent (an
effective rate of 3.31 percent at December 31, 2017). The toan was
paid off in 2018 - 1,381,742

Federal Home Loan Bank Affordable Housing Program notes payable,
received to assist in the building of low-income housing units. This loan
has no repayment requirements, no interest, and will be forgiven at the
end of the 15-year compliance period if the related projects are
operated in compliance with the grant terms. The loan is expected to be
forgiven on March 27, 2028. The loan is secured by the housing units
associated with the loan 720,000 720,000

Total 6,665,448 8,338,246
Less current portion . 635,865 4,831,503

Long-term portion $ 6,029,583 % 3,506,743

The balance of the above debt matures as follows:

Years Ending Amount
2019 $ 635,865
2020 2,162,424
2021 690,545
2022 719,634
2023 1,736,980

Thereafter 720,000
Total § 6,665,448

Interest expense for the line of credit and long-term debt totaled $237,553 and $185,722 for 2018 and
2017, respectively.

The Organization is required to meet quarterly debt covenants that include liquidity requirements in
relation to the term loan payables and line of credit.
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Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 9 - Employee Benefit Plan

The Organization has a 403(b) retirement plan. Under the plan, employees can elect to defer up to 85
percent of their annual compensation up to the maximum dollar amount determined by the Internal
Revenue Code.

The Organization provides a discretionary match for eligible employee contributions in an amount equal to
100 percent of elective deferral contributions according to the following schedule:

Limit on
Contributions
Years of Service Matched
No matching
Less than 2 contribution
2-4 4 percent
5-9 6 percent
10 or more 8 percent

In addition, the Organization can make a discretionary contribution of 2 percent of salary for each
participant employed at the end of the year, with at least two years of service, and who has worked at least
1,000 hours during the year. The discretionary contribution was not made for 2018. The contribution was
made for 2017.

The Organization made contributions of $1,669,456 and $2,028,936 to the plan for the years ended
December 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively,

Note 10 - Fair Value Measurements

Accounting standards require certain assets and liabilities be reported at fair value in the consolidated
financial statements and provide a framework for establishing that fair value. The framework for
determining fair value is based on a hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs and valuation techniques used to
measure fair value.

The following tables present information about the Organization's assets measured at fair value on a
recurring basis at December 31, 2018 and 2017 and the valuation techniques used by the Organization to
determine those fair values.

Fair values determined by Level 1 inputs use quoted prices in active markets for identical assets that the
Organization has the ability to access.

Fair values determined by Level 2 inputs use other inputs that are observable, either directly or indirectly.
These Level 2 inputs include quoted prices for similar assets in active markets and other inputs, such as
interest rates and yield curves, that are observable at commonly quoted intervals.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs, including inputs that are available in situations where there is little,
if any, market activity for the related asset. These Level 3 fair value measurements are based primarily on
management’s own estimates using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar
techniques taking into account the characteristics of the asset.

In instances whereby inputs used to measure fair value fall into different levels in the above fair value
hierarchy, fair value measurements in their entirety are categorized based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the valuation. The Organization’s assessment of the significance of particular inputs to these
fair value measurements requires judgment and considers factors specific to each asset.
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Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 10 - Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at
December 31, 2018

Quoted Prices
in Active Significant

Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
(Level 1) {Level 2) (Level 3) 2018
Assets
Investments:
Mutual funds - Domestic stock $ 6534384 § - % - § 6534384
Mutual funds - Foreign stock 4,469,797 - - 4,469,797
Mutual funds - Bonds 10,906,220 - - 10,906,220
Mutual funds - Real estate 594,014 - - 594,014
Exchange-traded funds - Domestic stock 3,430,312 - - 3,430,312
Exchange-traded funds - Foreign stock 1,719,140 - - 1,719,140
Exchange-traded funds - Real estate 1,039,335 - - 1,039,335
Pooled funds - Balanced - 80,375 - 80,375
Pooled funds - Domestic stock - 37.005 - 37,005
Pooled funds - Foreign equity - 56,748 - 56,748
Pooled funds - Bonds - 45,101 - 45 101
Equity securities measured at net asset
value 45 624
Total investments $ 268693202 § 219229 § - § 28,958,055
Assets Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis at
December 31, 2017
Quoted Prices
in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Uncbservable Balance at
Assets Inputs Inputs December 31,
{Level 1) {Leve! 2) (Level 3) 2017
Assets
Investments:
Mutual funds - Domestic stock $ 8,488966 $ - % - % B.488,966
‘Mutual funds - Foreign stock 5,704,076 - - 5,704,076
Mutuat funds - Bonds 11,477,323 - - 11,477,323
Mutual funds - Real estate 672,048 - - 672,046
Exchange-traded funds - Domestic stock 3,890,351 - - 3,890,351
Exchange-traded funds - Foreign stock 2,030,722 - - 2,030,722
Exchange-traded funds - Real estate 1,109,062 - - 1,109,062
Pooled funds - Balanced - 92,557 - 92,557
Pooled funds - Domestic stock - 47922 - 47 922
Pooled funds - Foreign equity - 71,411 - 71,411
Pooled funds - Bonds - 51,937 - 51,837
Equity securities measured at net asset )
value 56,472
Total investments $ 33372546 § 263827 § - $ 33,692,845

The fair value of pooled funds at December 31, 2018 and 2017 was determined primarily based on Level
2 inputs. The Organization estimates the fair value of these investments using quoted prices for similar
assets in active markets and other inputs such as interest rates and yield curves.

17



Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 10 - Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

The Organization's policy is to recognize transfers in and transfers between levels of the fair value
hierarchy as of the end of the reporting period. For the years ended December 31, 2018 and 2017, there
were no transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy.

Note 11 - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments

The Organization's endowment includes both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by
the board of directors to function as endowments. Net assets associated with endowment funds, including
funds designated by the board of directors to function as endowments, are classified and reported based
on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions.

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The Organization is subject to the Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA) and,
thus, classifies amounts in its donor-restricted endowment funds as net assets with donor restrictions
because those net assets are time restricted unti! the board of directors appropriates such amounts for
expenditures. Most of those net assets also are subject to purpose restrictions that must be met before
‘reclassifying those net assets to net assets without donor restrictions. The board of directors of the
Organization had interpreted UPMIFA as not requiring the maintenance of purchasing power of the
original gift amount contributed to an endowment fund, unless a donor stipulates the contrary. As a result
of this interpretation, when reviewing its donor-restricted endowment funds, the Organization considers a
fund to be underwater if the fair value of the fund is less than the sum of (a) the original value of initial and
subsequent gift amounts donated to the fund, and (b) any accumulations to the fund that are required to
be maintained in perpetuity in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument. The
Organization has interpreted UPMIFA to permit spending from underwater funds in accordance with the
prudent measures required under the law, Additionally, in accordance with UPMIFA, the Organization
considers the following factors in making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted
endowment funds:

¢ The duration and preservation of the fund

+ The purpose of the Organization and the donor-restricted endowment fund
» General economic conditions

» The possible effect of inflation and deflation

s The expected total return from income and the appreciation of investments
s QOther resources of the Organization

e The investment policies of the Organization

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund

. as of December 31,.2018
Without Donor With Donor
Restrictions Restrictions Total
Board-designated endowment funds $ 17,529,809 § - $ 17,529,809
Donor-restricted endowment funds: - 633,121 633,121
Total $ 17,529,808 § 633,121 $ 18,162,930
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Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 11 - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments (Continued)

Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the Fiscal
Year Ended December 31, 2018

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Endowment net assets - Beginning of year $ 19,569,081 % 712594 $ 20,281,675
Investmaent return: .
Investment income , 834 368 - 834,368
Net depreciation {2,347,971) (55,820) (2,403,791}
" Total investment return (1.513,603) {55,820) (1.569,423)
Contributions 612,604 4573 617,177
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure (878,997) {28,226) (907,223}
Other changes - Transfers to net assets without
donor restrictions - Undesignated (259.276) - {258,276)

$ 17,529,809 $ 633,121 $ 18,162,930

Endowment net assets - End of year

Endowment Net Asset Composition by Type of Fund
as of December 31, 2017
Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Total
Board-designated endowment funds $ 19,569,081 § - % 19,569,081
Donor-restricted endowment funds; - 712,594 712,594
Total $ 19,569,081 $ 712,584 $& 20,281,675

Changes in Endowment Net Assets for the Fiscal
Year Ended December 31, 2017

Without Donor With Donor

Restrictions Restrictions Totat
Endowment net assets - Beginning of year $ 18213840 % 665814 § 18,879,654
Investment return:
Investment income 773,486 - 773,486
Net appreciation 1,580,145 86,170 1,666,315
Total investment return 2,353,631 86,170 2,438,801
Contributions 124,490 3620 128,110
Appropriation of endowment assets for expenditure {885,506) {43,010) {928,516)
Other changes - Transfers to net assets without
donor restrictions - Undesignated (237,374) - {237,374)
$ 19569081 % 712594 § 20,281,675

Endowment net assets - End of year
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Bethany Christian Services

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
December 31, 2018 and 2017

Note 11 - Donor-restricted and Board-designated Endowments (Continued)
Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The Organization has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Endowment assets include those assets of
donor-restricted funds that the Organization must hold in perpetuity or for a donor-specified period(s) as
well as board-designated funds. Under this policy, as approved by the board of directors, the endowment
assets are invested in a manner that is intended to produce results that exceed the price and yield results
while assuming a moderate level of investment risk. The Organization expects its endowment funds, over
time, to provide an average rate of retum of approximately 8 percent annually. Actual returns in any given
year may vary from this amount.

Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term rate-of-return objectives, the Organization relies on a total return strategy in which
investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and current
yield (interest and dividends). The Organization targets a diversified asset allocation that places a greater
emphasis on equity-based investments to achieve its long-term return objectives within prudent risk
constraints.

Spending Policy and How the investment Objectives Relate to Spending Policy

The Organization has a policy of appropriating for distribution each year 5 percent of its endowment fund's
average fair value over the prior eight quarters through the calendar year end preceding the fiscal year in
which the distribution is planned. In establishing this policy, the Organization considered the long-term
expected rate of return on its endowment. Accordingly, over the long term, the Organization expects the
current spending policy to allow its endowment to grow an average of 3 percent annual. The Organization
has a policy that permits spending from underwater endowment funds depending on the degree to which
the fund is underwater, unless otherwise precluded by donor intent or relevant laws and regulations.

Note 12 - Net Assets

Net assets with donor restrictions as of December 31 are available for the following purposes:

2018 2017
Subject to expenditures for a specified purpose:
Term endowments $ 440,954 § 504,279
Accumulated earnings on donor endowments 58,752 84,625
Washington Foster Care 158,375 -
Unaccompanied Children Crisis 1,082,099 -
Total subject to expenditures for a specified purpose 1,740,180 588,904
Subject to the passage of time - Pledges 937,041 1,034,979
Subject to the Organization's spending policy and appropriation - Donor
endowment . 188,723 185,810
Total $ 2865944 § 1,809,693
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BETHANY CHRISTIAN SERVICES OF NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND
NEW ENGLAND BOARD MEMBERS

Alisa Barthelemy (WNE Interim Vice President) 015 | Nicole Johnson (NNE Interim President) - 2015
Job Title: Social Worker Job Title: Stay-at-home mom
Robert Crain 2019 | Darlene Kimball 201t
Job Title: Director and Founder Job Title: Homemaker
Nick DeYoung 2019 | Jennessa Kimball 2012
Job Title: Lead Pastor Job Title: Engineer

!
Wanda Green (NNE Treasurer) 2015 | Deanna Smith (NNE Secretary) 2014
Job Title: Accountant Job Title: Bookkeeper and Stay at home mom
Joseph Johnson ’ 2015

Job Title: Civil Engineer

Date Revised: 11/30/19




JENNIFER LAMONTAGNE

EMPLOYMENT

2014-Present In home child care provider

Owner
Providing quality child care and related services to children in

my home

2014-2015 CASA Volunteer

Volunteered for CASA of NH

Visited assigned children monthly and attended court to
advocate on their behalf while looking out for their best
interests.

2007-2014 Independent Home Care Service Provider
Administrator/Care provider

NH Licensed-providing care for the elderly in their homes,
whole patient focused, coordinating care, scheduling, and
payroll

2005-2007 NH Community Technical College

Berlin, NH

Teacher )

NH credentialed preschool teacher serving children 3-5 years
and families, NAEYC accredited school, created and taught
DAP curriculum, worked individually with developmentally
disabled preschoolers, progress reporting, assessments

2004-2005 Dartmouth Hitchcock Medical Center

Lebanon, NH

LNA Hematology/Oncology Inpatient

In collaboration with unit staff performed assigned patient
care activities, clerical, and environmental duties,

skilled in advanced and postmortem care, pt function
assessments to include vital signs, specimen collection,
suction, wound care assistance, oxygen application. Initiate
and maintain clinical charts. Participated in committees and
projects as assigned. Capable of completing a high volume of
requests quickly and efficiently in muitiple roles.




EDUCATION

2000-2002 Cottage Hospital
Woodsville, NH
MIS/Billing

Calculated daily patient charges , posted to accounts, ran
computerized ER/Clinic reports, gained knowledge in
computer repair, used spreadsheets to track monthly
department charges.

Promoted to Business Office, Patient Account Representative.
Accurate and timely processing of claims to third -party
carriers and intermediaries while answering inquiries on a
timely basis. Monitoring late charges to accounts,
rebilled/reviewed/verified and Keyed third-party remittances to
proper accounts within 24 hours, attended billing meetings and
fiscal service meetings as necessary. electronically billed
batched to NH/VT medicaid, keyed stat link claims, optical
scanning

2014 Casa Training
Became a Casa/GAL

2008 EMT Course Berlin, NH
Graduated written and clinical

2004 Clinical Career Training, LLC
Graduated theory and clinical studies through NH Board of
Nursing as Licensed Nursing Assistant

2004-2007 Springfield College St Johnsbury, VT
Human services/ counseling

Maintained Deans list status as a student in the
Bachelor of Human Service Program.

2001-2004 NH Community Technical Coliege Berlin, NH
Health Science Technology-graduate, high honors. Early

Childhood Education, Special Education.




CYNTHIA A. THOMAS

EXPERIENCE

HUMAN RESOURCES MANAGER 8/2014 - 172015

McClellan Automation Systems, Merrimack, NH
« Performed full HR function audit of all services, benefits & files. Assisted the company in

downsizing from 235 to 35 due to a major contract loss. Full benefits management, open
enroliment, implementation of financial wellness program and new 401k vendor,

HUMAN RESOURCES & BENEFITS 1172013 - 7/2014

Robert Half & Kelly Services, Bedford, NH

« Temporary positions involving recruitment, benefits audits, human resources audits,
consulting regarding employment and benefits laws, bringing HR department into
compliance with ERISA and employment laws, preparation of employee handbook and
company policies.

HUMAN RESOURCE & PAYROLL MANAGER 10/2008 - 01/2013
SAl Communications- Corporate headquarters {Company operates in 10 states)

* New start up HR department at corporate headquarters

» Hired 100+ employees in one year

» Implemented HRIS system, new ADP payroll Payexpert/HRB, IPAY employee self-
service, added new benefits, setup carrier feeds for enroliment, payroli
processing/management for 250 employees in ten {10) states, including tax
administration and state reporting.

» Developed and implemented management training program natlonwide worker's
compensation and loss prevention, employee handbook and company policies

e Managed COBRA, FmLA benefits, LOA, worker's compensation, STD and all benefit
plans.

COMMUNITY LIAISON 07/2009 - present
Bethany Christian Services USA LLC (NH)

« Qutreach to churches, businesses and organizations statewide on behalf of NH foster
children and children awaiting adoptive homes

» Recruitment of foster families, organize events, rally support for items needed for children
coming inte care, form alliances to raise awareness and provide ongoing support.
Recruited 70+ families in 2013

» This work is performed under a grant from the NH Division of Children, Youth & Families

HUMAN RESOURCE DIRECTOR 11/2005 - 02/2007
Newick's Hospitality Group, inc. (ME & NH)

Opened new restaurant, closed two restaurant locations, hired 125 in three weeks

»

» Conducled job fairs, job orientation, processing payroll for 300+ multi-state

¢ 401k plan administrator, implemented management and employee training programs

« Complete benefits review and sourcing of new vendors

e Managed all benefits, COBRA, 401k, FmLA, worker's compensation, altendance.
BENEFITS & RETIREMENT VIANAGER 08/1998 — 06/2001

Textron Automotive Co., Inc., Farmington, NH (3835, Div. of Texiron, Inc.




« Managed the benefit and retirement plans for five locations and a base of 1000
employees, 2000 vested former employees, and 700 retirees

+ Performed proaclive benefits sourcing, assisting employees and retirees with benefit

" issues, coordination of benefits administration with TPA's and other vendors

e Asretirement plan administrator | performed plan audits, FAS87 and FAS106 reporting,
preparation of retirement calculations

» Responsible for Peoplesoft database and consulting with Diviston to bring 27 plants on
line for vendor interface

CORPORATE BENEFITS, 401k & PENSION MANAGER 04/1992 - 06/1997
Prime Tanning Co., Inc., Rochester, NH 03866 {Multi-state ME, NH & MO)

« Established a flexible benefits plan, prescription retail & mail plan, Behavioral Health/EAP
network resulting in significant cost savings for the company

+ Conducted a complete overhaul of personnel and benefit records to assure compliance

» Established new relationships with benefit vendors. Implemented a 401(k) plan
Prepared SPD’s and Plan Documents for benefit and pension plans, revised vendor
contracts to minimize company exposure

¢ Management and administration of Defined Contribution, Profit Sharing/401k & Defined
Benefit Plans, as well as Health & Welfare Benefit Plans

OWNER, ACCOUNTANT, PROPERTY MANAGER
~ Thomas Seacoast Rentals, NH : 01/1998 - 03/2014

s Purchased, renovated, and managed property rentals for up to 21 units, 7 properties
« Accounting, AP/AR, contracted for renovations, tax filings, leases, tenant relations

HUMAN RESOURCE & SAFETY MANAGER 08/1989 — 11/1991
Teledyne Laars, division of Teledyne, Inc.

| was the first person hired for the start-up company and recruited all management, exempt and
non-exempt employees and established the HR department.

« Established company benefit pians, company procedures, policies and a handbook

e Member of strategic development team that developed a 5-year strategic plan

» Established company safety program, safety training, safely policies and procedures, and
a First Aid team. Successfully underwent a complete OSHA review and DOL review
Lowest worker's compensation costs out of all Teledyne’s divisions that was especially
remarkabie considering we were a start-up with all new employees J

» Established a wage and salary program for the facility, implemented a 401(k) plan

« Managed payroll, recruitment of over 100 employees, exempt and non-exempt

HUMAN RESOURCE MANAGER “ 07/1986 ~ 07/1989
NESLAB Instruments Inc. -now Thermo NESLAB (Fisher Scientific), Newingten, NH

The Human Resource Department was newly established. | brought the company from a small
privately owned company with 140 employees to 260 employees during this ime. This was done
during a period of less than 2% unemployment on the Seacoast.

» Managed HR, employee relations, safety, training, 401k and pension administration,
profit sharing, wage and salary administration, benefits, and employment

» Established a company handbook, cpen houses for employees and employment, awards
program, management training program, employee newsletter, HRIS

» | developed a complete wage and compensation program including Executive
management, sales, engineering, staff, and manufacturing job descriptions, salary
surveys, benefits surveys, wage and salary scales, and performance review plan

= Managed payroll function

COMPUTER BACKGROUND




Extensive HRIS & Payroll: ADP HR Partner and Payroll, PC Payroll, PayEScpert, ADP HR and
Benefits, MAS90, ADP IPAY, Control Data Payroll, Peoplesoft HR, ABRA HR 2000. Competent
in Excel, Wordperfect, Word, Publisher, Powerpoint, Quicken, Quickbooks, Outlook, Access.

EDUCATION
MBA 2001 Business Management Southern NH University
Bachelor's Degree 1986 Business Management & Accounting  Franklin Pierce College

SPHR Ceriification 2000 Society of Human Resource Management




DEBORAH J. MILLER

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE

Bethany Christian Services, North Andover, Massachusetts
Office Coordinator, April 2001 through the present
» Facilitate and provide office support for multiple social workers covering four New England states.
s Create and implement efficient office procedures to improve both internal and customer focuscd communications
s  Copy editor for New Hampshire Community and Faith Based Initiative newsletter
» Establish strong, customer focused relationships with clients through all communications channels; phone, face to
face or web inquires.
Coordinate all travel arrangements and itineraries
Crisis managemenl. Facilitate communication between social workers, clients in crisis, and State Agencies.
» Responsible for data entry for afl client and financial based systems.

v

Park Street Travel, Andover, Massachusetts
Office Assistant, August 2000 through April 2001
s Provided administrative and organizational support to eight travel agents by answering multiple telephone lines,
separating tickets and invoices for clients, preparing Federal Express and locat deliveries, loading various forms into
printers, preparing itineraries for foreign travel, computer support and filing,

MarchFirst, Inc., Salem, New Hampshire
Senior Consultant, October [998 through August 2000
s ].D. Edwards technical consultant responsibilities included program modifications, analysis and design of conversion
programs, training, technical documentation and implementation documentation.
¢ Completed the J. D. Edwards One World technical immersions five-week training class.
»  Applications included Accounts Receivable, Accounts Payable, General Ledger, Distribution and Manufacturing,
» Clients included: Asahi America, Data Inshruments, and Lynn Ladder in Massachusetts, Spirol Interniational in
Conneclicut and William Grant and Sons in New Jersey.

Asahi/America, Malden, Massachusetts
Senior Programmer/Analyst, August 1996 through October 1998
¢ Friedman Associates Software Modules included A/R, A/P, Customer Order Processing, ATO and Inventory.
+ Troubleshoot various user problems from Friedman Software to AS400 operational issues.
»  Design, Code, Test and Implement a Complaint database, '
o  Train junior staff member in RPG.
e  Write reports for A/R, Purchasing and Sales.
¢ Download A/R data to a Dun & Bradstreet RAM system
+ Completed Technical Foundations training for I. D. Edwards

Dana-Farber Cancer Institute. Boston, Massachusetts
Senior Software Engineer, November 1992 through 19%6
* Training of junior staff members in SDLC, RPG, CLP and application function for patient accounting,
+  Project leader for Aldon Change Management system. Managed all phascs of project:
»  Selection, justification, planning, implementation and training,
« Served as customer liaison handling communications between customers and programming staff.
»  Heavy customer interaction for throughout testing and implementation phases,
» Implementation-coordinator during system installations.
»  Technical Coordinator for Patient Accounting Applications handling trouble calls and serving as on-call
programmer
» Continuous Quality Improvement Teams included: Systems Development Life Cycle, On~Call Process, IS CQI
Support and Interdepartmental Communication.




DEBORAH J. MILLER

EDUCATION & TRAININ

Received GED Diploma in [982

Northern Essex Community College — Business Management w/Data Processing Concentration
1BM RPG Programming Classes

Various HIPAA. and Cultural Diversity Workshops Classes

COMPUTER SKILLS
Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, Lotus Notes, Windows 95/98, XP & 7, Team Viewer

VOLUNTEERISM
Trauma Intervention Program $6 hour training
Host a home group for Northland: A Church Distributed

REFERENCES

Furnished upon request.




Janice Lessard Peightell. MSW. LICSW

H

EDUCATION
1998 - NH Certified Clinical Social Worker
1986 - Portsmouth Family Institute.
Completed “Advanced Supervision Group in Family and Couples Therapy”.
1985 - Portsmouth Family Institute completed “Family and Couples Therapy”.
1981 - ACSW Certification
1979 - Master of Social Work, Syracuse University, Dean’s List
1978 - Bachelor of Science- Social Work. State University at Brockport, Magna Cum Laude.
1976 - State University at Geneseo — Sociology, Dean’s List.

EXPERIENCE

2015-Present: Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England - Director
Responsible for direction of the adoption, pregnancy counseling programs in New Hampshire
and Vermont. Oversight of the Community and Faith Based Initiative grant; Wendy’s
Wonderful Kids grant; and Safe Families for Children’s program in New Hampshire. Position
includes staff supervision and some clinical work in pregnancy counseling and adoption
programs.

2012-2014 Bethany Christian Services of New England - Interim Director

Responsible for the direction of the adoption, pregnancy counseling, and grant programs in
New Hampshire, Vermont, Rhode Island, and Massachusetts. Position includes staff
supervision, adoptive home studies, pregnancy counseling, budget preparation, and over site of
the Wendy’s Wonderful Kid and the Community and Faith Based Initiative programs.

1998-2011 Bethany Christian Services of New England - Co-Director.

Responsibilities include directing the adoption and pregnancy counseling programs in New
' Hampshire and Vermont. Current position includes completing domestic and international
adoptive home assessments, providing counseling to women experiencing unplanned
pregnancies and their partner and/or extended family members. Providing staff support and
supervision. :

1987-1998 Bethany Christian Services of New England - Social Worker,

Responsibilities included completing all pregnancy counseling for clients in New Hampshire
and Vermont who requested counseling regarding their unplanned pregnancy. Completed
adoptive family assessments for couples and single applicants in New Hampshire and Vermont.

1989-1990 WHITE PINES COLLEGE - Instructor in Social Work Department
Taught methods of social work and supervised student field placements.




1986-1987 CROTCHED MOUNTAIN REHABILITION CENTER

Senior Case Manager/Social Worker
Supervision of staff, filled in for Director in his absence, led study team, other administrative

duties as assigned as well as carrying full caseload.

1979 -1986 CROTCHED MOUNTAIN REHABILITATION CENTER

Case Manager/Social Worker

Duties included acting as the primary client advocate for thirty-five to forty-five multiply-
handicapped students, coordinating the student’s programming, acting as the liaison between
the Center, the students’ families, and other outside parties. Leader of the Parent Support
Group for the pre-school program.

PUBLICATIONS EDITED :
“You Too?” A handbook written by parents of special needs children for parents of a special

needs child. Crotched Mountain Rehabilitation Center, January 1983,

REFERENCES
Furnished upon request.




CONTRACTOR NAME

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Salary % Paid from | Amount Paid from

this Contract | this Contract
Jennifer Lamontagne | Community Coordinator $19.00 per 7 hours a $6,910

hour week

Cynthia Thomas Community Coordinator $57,677 18 hours a $25,946

week
Debbie Miller Office Administrator $48,703 2 hours a $2,435

week
Janice Lessard Branch Director $74,670 4 hours a $7,465
Peightell week




STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
OFFICE OF HUMAN SERVICES
DIVISION FOR CHILDREN, YOUTH & FAMILIES

JefTrey A. Meyers '
Commissioner 129 PLEASANT STREET, CONCORD, NH 03301-3857

603-271-4455  1-B00-852-3345 Ext. 4455
Christine Tappan Fax: 603-271-4729 TDD Access: 1-800-735-2964

Interim Director www.dhhs.nh.gov/deyf

August 29, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Health and Human Services, Division for Children, Youth,
and Families, to enter into an agreement with Bethany Christian Services of Northern New
England, Vendor #161782-B001, P.O. Box 320, 183 High Street Candia, NH 03034, in an
amount not to exceed $100,000, to provide a Community and Faith Based Initiative for the
support of Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families, effective January 1, 2018 or upon date of
Governor and Council approval, whichever is later, through December 31, 2019. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funds are available in the following account(s) for SFY 2018 and SFY 2019 and are
anticipated to be available in SFY 2020, with authority to adjust amounts within the price
limitation and adjust encumbrances between State Fiscal Years through the Budget Office if
needed and justified, without approval from Governor and Executive Council.

05-95-42-421010-29730000 HEALTH AND SOCIAL SERVICES, HEALTH AND HUMAN
SVCS DEPT of, HHS: HUMAN SERVICES, CHILD PROTECTION, PROMOTING SAFE-
STABLE FAMILIES

SFY Class . Title Activity Code Budget
2018 102-500734 | Contracts for Program Services 42107306 $25,000
2019 102-500734 | Contracts for Program Services 42107306 $50,000
2020 102-500734 | Contracts for Program Services | 42107306 $25,000

Total $100,000




His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 2 of 3

EXPLANATION

The purpose of this request is for the provision of recruitment, retention, and support for
foster, relative, and adoptive families by engaging community and faith based organizations to
provide families for children in need of a home, and to provide supportive services to those
families. The Community and Faith Based Initiative was developed to augment the Division’s
annual statewide recruitment and retention plan. The Division seeks to engage leaders in
community and faith based agencies in order to increase the accessibility of natural supports
available in the community that can assist foster, relative, and adoptive families.

Foster, relative, and adoptive parents have a critical role in ensuring the safety and
wellbeing of the children in New Hampshire who have been removed from their birth family.
Recruiting and providing assistance to these families is crucial to having a readily available
pool of providers who can provide that care. Children who enter foster care and are adopted
from foster care may have challenges related to the trauma they have experienced and having
access to supports and services while in care and after adoption not only helps retain families
but ensures the children's well-being. This benefits the family, the children, and the State of
New Hampshire as a whole.

Recruiting and supporting foster, relative, and adoptive parents impacts all child-serving:
systems because it aliows children to have the supports they need to remain in their
communities, addresses trauma, and improve overall well-being. The improved outcomes for
children can have positive effects on schools, childcare centers, afterschool programs, family
assistance programs, and ultimately housing, homelessness, and even the state correctional
system.

Bethany Christian Services was selected for this project through a competitive bid
process. A Request for Proposals was posted on the Department of Health and Human
Services' website from June 5, 2017 through July 13, 2017. The Department received one (1)
proposal. The proposal was reviewed and scored by a team of individuals with program
specific knowledge. The Bid Summary is attached.

As referenced in the Request for Proposals and in Exhibit C-1 of this contract, this
Agreement has the option to extend for up to two (2) additional years, contingent upon
satisfactory delivery of services, available funding, agreement of the parties, and approval of
the Governor and Council.

Should the Governor and Executive Council decide not to approve this request, the
foster and adoptive parents in the state will lose out on much needed supports, and the state
will lose the additional families who are recruited through the activities of the grant. In addition
the state will lose many important partnerships that are forged through this initiative.

Area served: statewide .

Source of funds: 100% Federal Funds. (CFDA # 93.556 - Promoting Safe and Stable Families
Program, FAIN 1701NHFPSS)



His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
Page 3of 3

In the event that the Federal Funds become no longer available, General Funds will not
be requested to support this program

Respectfully submitted

Christine Tappan
Interim Director

Approved by: M

Jefrey A. Meyers
Commissioner

The Department of Health and Human Services’ Mission is to join communities and families
in providing opportunitics for citizens to achieve health and independence.



Summary Scoring Sheet

New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Office of Business Operations
Contracts & Procurement Unit

Community and Falth Based Initlative to Support
Fostor, Relative, and Adoptive Familles

10.

11.

RFP-2018-DCYF-08-COMMU

RFP Name RFP Number
Maximum Actual
Bidder Name Pass/Fall| Points | Points
Bethany Christian Service of Northern New
" England 208 201
0 205 0
0 205 0
0 205 0
0 208 0
0 206 0
o 208 )
0 205 0
0 205 0
0 206 0
0 205 0

Reviewer Names
"Rebecca Lorden, Fiscal
- Administrator, OCYF (Cost)
§eung Ram, financial analyst,
2. DCYF (Cost)
Eanaaoe xsood. Post Adoption
3. Coordinator, DCYF (Tech)
Amﬁ?ers, Resource Worker,
4. DCYF (Tech)
5 Tathenne Merster, Adoptio?ﬁmg.
* Supervisor, OCYF (Tech)

6.




FORM NUMBER P-37 (version 5/8/15)
ili FP-2018-DCYF-08-COMM

Notigg: This agreement and all of its attachments shall become public upon submissien to Governor and
Executive Council for approval. Any information that is private, confidential or proprietary must
be clearly identified 1o the agency and agreed to in writing prior to signing the contract,

AGREEMENT .
The State of New Hampshire and the Contractor hereby mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. IDENTIFICATION.
1.1 State Agency Name 1.2 State Agency Address
NH Department of Health and Human Services 129 Pleasant Street
Concord, NH 03301-3857
1.3 Contractor Name 1.4 Contractor Address
Bethany Christian Services of Northern New England P.O. Box 320
183 High Street p
Candia, NH 03034
1.5 Contractor Phone 1.6 Account Number 1.7 Completion Date 1.8 Price Limitation
Number
603-483-2886 05-95-42-421010-29730000- December 31, 2019 $100,000
102-500734
1.9 Contracting Officer for State Agency 1.10 State Agency Telephone Number
Jonathan V. Gallo, Esq., Interim Director 603-271-9246
1.11 Contractor Signature 1.12 Name and Title of Contractor Signatory
Tinw L d R 1 Tancee Lessant Perghbett
\ Broncs  Diregdr”

1.13 Acknowledgement: State of Ny t-s egute County of . glu\ﬁ..f

on A l R , l‘? , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person identified in block 1. 12, or satisfactorily
proven to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11, and acknowledged that s'he executed this document in the capacity
indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1 Sigpature of No blic or Justice of the Peace
)ﬁi.a.z,mt ‘ SHARON PACKARD Nokary Pubbic SHAROM PACKARD, Hotory mw
(Seal] My Co~- - I:tize: Ocoher 2, 201" My Commission Expires _]

1.13.2 Name and Title of Notary or Justice of the Peace

1.15 WName and Title of State Agency Signator)"

— . ~ o -

¢ ¥, i,

By: Director, On:

1.17 Approval by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if applicable)

AN e 1 R

1.18 Approval by the Governor and Ekecutive C{ljncil (a_'fabplkable) |

By: / ' On:
W/
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2, EMPLOYMENT OF CONTRACTOR/SERVICES TO
BE PERFORMED. The State of New Hampshire, acting
through the agency identified in block 1.1 {"'State™). engages
contractor identified in block 1.3 (“Contractor”) to perform,
and the Contractor shall perform, the work or sale of goods, or
both, identified and more particularly described in the anached
EXHIBIT A which is incorporated herein by reference
{“Services™).

3. EFFECTIVE DATE/COMPLETION OF SERVICES.
3.1 Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the
contrary, and subject 10 the approval of the Governer and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire, if
applicable, this Agreement, and all obligations of the parties
hereunder, shall become effective on the date the Govemor
and Executive Council approve this Agreement as indicated in
block 1.18, unless no such approval is required, in which case
the Agreement shall become effective on the date the
Agreement is signed by the State Agency as shown in block
1.14 {"Effective Date").

3.2 [f the Contractor commences the Services prior to the
Effective Date, all Services performed by the Contractor prior
to the Effective Date shall be performed at the sole risk of the
Contractor, and in the event that this Agreement does not
become effective, the State shall have no liability to the
Contractor, including without limitation, any obligation to pay
the Contractor for any costs incurred or Services performed.
Contractor must complete all Services by the Completion Date
specified in block 1.7.

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement (o the
contrary, all obligations of the State hereunder, including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are
contingent upon the availability and continued appropriation
of funds, and in no cvent shall the State be liable for any
payments hereunder in excess of such available appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of
appropriated funds, the State shall have the right to withhold
payment until such funds become available, if ever, and shall
have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon
giving the Contractor notice of such termination. The State
shall not be required to transfer funds from any other account
to the Account identified in block 1.6 in the event funds in that
Account are reduced or unavailable.

5. CONTRACT PRICE/PRICE LIMITATION/
PAYMENT,

5.1 The contract price, method of payment, and terms of
payment are identified and more particularly described in
EXHIBIT B which is incorporated herein by reference.

5.2 The payment by the State of the contract price shall be the
only and the complete reimbursement to the Contractor for all
expenses, of whatever nature incurred by the Contractor in the
performance hercof, and shall be the only and the complete
compensation to the Contractor for the Services. The State
shall have no liability to the Contractor other than the contract
price.
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5.3 The State reserves the right to offset from any amounts
otherwise payable to the Contractor under this Agreement
those liquidated amounis required or permitted by N.H. RSA
80:7 through R3A 80:7-c or any other provision of law.

5.4 Notwithstanding any provision in this Agreement to the
contrary, and notwithstanding unexpected circumstances, in
no event shall the total of all payments authorized, or actually
made hercunder, exceed the Price Limitation set forth in block
1.8

6. COMPLIANCE BY CONTRACTOR WITH LAWS
AND REGULATIONS/ EQUAL EMPLOYMENT
OPPORTUNITY.

6.1 [n connection with the performance of the Services, the
Contractor shall comply with all statutes, laws, regulations,
and orders of federal, state, county or municipel authoritics
which impose any obligation or duty upon the Contractor,
including, but not limited to, civil rights and equal opportunity
laws. This may include the requirement to utilize auxiliary
aids and services to ensure that persons with communication
disabilities, including vision, hearing and speech, can
communicate with, receive information from, and convey
information to the Contracior. [n addition, the Contractor
shall comply with all applicable copyright laws.

6.2 During the term of this Agreement, the Contractor shall
not discriminate against employees or applicants for
employment because of race, color, religion, creed, age, sex,
handicap, sexual orientation, or national origin and will take
affirmative action 1o prevent such discrimination.

6.3 [fthis Agreement is funded in any part by monies of the
United Staies, the Contractor shall comply with all the
provisions of Executive Order No. 11246 (*Equal
Employment Opportunity”). as supptemented by the
regulations of the United States Department of Labor (41
C.F.R. Part 60), and with any rules, regulations and guidelines
as the State of New Hampshire or the United States issue to
implement these regulations. The Contractor further agrees to
permit the State or United States access to any of the
Contractor’s books, records and accounts for the purpose of
ascertaining compliance with all rules, regulations and orders,
and the covenants, terms and conditions of this Agreement.

7. PERSONNEL.

7.1 The Contractor shall at its own expense provide all
personnel necessary to perform the Services. The Contractor
warrants that all personnel engaged in the Services shall be
qualified to perform the Services, and shall be properly
licensed and otherwise authorized to do so under all applicable
laws.

7.2 Unless otherwise authorized in writing, during the term of
this Agrecment, and for a period of six (6) months after the
Completion Date in block 1.7, the Contractor shall not hire,
and shall not permit any subcontractor or other person, firm or
corporation with whom it is engaged in 2 combined cffort to
perform the Services to hire, any person who is e State
employee or official, who is materially involved in the
procurement, administration or performance of this

JU7
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Agrecment. This provision shall survive termination of this
Agreement.

7.3 The Contracting QOfficer specified in block 1.9, or his or
her successor, shall be the State’s representative. In the event
of any dispute concerning the interpretation of this Agreement,
the Contracting Officer's decision shall be final for the State.

8. EVENT OF DEFAULT/REMEDIES.

8.1 Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the
Contractor shall constitute an event of default hereunder
(*Event of Default™):

8.1.1 failure to perform the Services satisfactorily or on
schedule;

8.1.2 failure to submit any report required hereunder; and/or
8.1.3 failure to perform any other covenant, term or condition
of this Agreement.

8.2 Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State
may take any one, or more, or all, of the following actions:
8.2.1 give the Contractor a written notice specifying the Event
of Default and requiring it to be remedied within, in the
absence of a greater or lesser specification of time, thirty (30)
days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is
not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two
(2) days after giving the Contractor notice of termination;
8.2.2 give the Contractor a wrinten notice specifying the Event
of Default and suspending all payments to be made under this
Agreement and ordering that the portion of the contract price
which would otherwise accrue to the Contractor during the
peried from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Contractor has cured the Event of Default
shall never be paid to the Contractor;

8.2.3 set off against any other obligations the State may owe to
the Contractor any damages the State suffers by reason of any
Event of Default; and/or

8.2.4 treat the Agreement as breached and pursue any of its
remedics at law or in equity, or both.

9. DATAJACCESS/CONFIDENTIALITY/
PRESERVATION,

9.1 As used in this Agreement, the word “data” shall mean all
information and things developed or obtained during the
performance of, or acquired or developed by reason of| this
Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports,
files, formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video
recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings, analyses,
graphic representations, computer programs, computer
printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, papers, and documents,
all whether finished or unfinished.

9.2 All data and any property which has been received from
the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose
under this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and
shall be returned to the State upon demand or upon
termination of this Agreement for any reason.

9.3 Confidentiality of data shall be governed by N.H. RSA
chapter 91-A or other existing law. . Disclosure of data
requires prior written approval of the State.
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10. TERMINATION. In the event of an early termination of
this Agreement for any reason other than the completion of the
Services, the Contractor shall deliver 1o the Contracting
Officer, not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of
termination, a report { “Termination Report™) describing in
detail all Services performed, and the contract price eamned, to
and including the date of termination. The form, subject
marter, content, and number of copies of the Termination
Report shall be identical to those of any Final Repon
described in the attached EXHIBIT A.

1. CONTRACTOR'S RELATION TO THE STATE. In
the performance of this Agreement the Contractor is in all
respects an independent contractor, and is neither an agent nor
an employee of the State. Neither the Contractor nor any of its
officers, employees, agents or members shall have authority to
bind the State or receive any benefits, workers® compensation
or other emoluments provided by the State to its employces.

12. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION/SUBCONTRACTS.
The Contractor shall not assign, or otherwise transfer any
interest in this Agreement without the prior written notice and
consent of the State. None of the Services shall be
subcontracted by the Contractor without the prior written
notice and consent of the State.

13. INDEMNIFICATEION. The Contractor shall defend,
indemnify and hold harmiess the State, its officers and
employees, from and against any and all losses suffered by the
State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Siate, its officers
and employees, by or on behalf of any person, on account of,
based or resulting from, arising out of (or which may be
claimed 10 arise out of} the acts or omissions of the
Conrractor. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein
contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hercby
reserved 1o the State. This covenant in paragraph 13 shall
survive the termination of this Agreement,

14, INSURANCE.

14.1 The Contractor shall, at its sole expense, obtain and
maintain in force, and shall require any subcontractor or
assignee to obtain and maintain in force, the following
insurance:

14.1.1 comprehensive general liability insurance against all
claims of bodily injury, death or property damage, in amounts
of not less than $1,000,000per occurrence and 52,000,000
aggregate ; and

14.1.2 special cause of loss coverage form covering all
property subject 10 subparagraph 9.2 herein, in an amount not
less than 80% of the whole replacement value of the property.
14.2 The policies described in subparagraph 14.1 herein shall
be on policy forms and endorsements approved for use in the
State of New Hampshire by the N.H. Depantment of
Insurance, and issued by insurers licensed in the State of New

Hampshire. 17
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14.3 The Conractor shall furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in block 1.9, or his or her successor, a certificate(s)
of insurance for all insurance required under this Agreement,
Contractor shall alse furnish to the Contracting Officer
identified in biock 1.9, or his or her successor, certificate(s) of
insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance required under this
Agreement no later than thirty (30} days prior to the expiration
date of each of the insurance policies. The certificate(s) of
insurance and any renewals thercof shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. Each certificate(s) of
insurance shall contain a ¢lause requiring the insurer to
provide the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, no ess than thirty (30) days prior writien
notice of cancellation or modification of the policy.

15. WORKERS’ COMPENSATION.

15.1 By signing this agreement, the Contractor agrees,
certifies and warrants that the Contractor is in compliance with
or exempt from, the requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A
(" Workers' Compensation”),

15.2 To the extent the Contractor is subject to the
requirements of N.H. RSA chapter 281-A, Contractor shall
maintain, and require any subcontractor or assignee to secure
and maintain, payment of Workers' Compensation in
conneciion with activities which the person proposes to
undertake pursuant to this Agreement. Contractor shall
furnish the Contracting Officer identified in block 1.9, or his
or her successor, proof of Workers™ Compensation in the
manner described in N.H. RSA chapter 281-A and any
applicable renewal(s) thereof, which shall be attached and are
incorporated herein by reference. The State shall not be
responsible for payment of any Warkers’ Compensation
premiums or for any other clatm or benefit for Contractor, or
any subcontractor or employee of Contractor, which might
arise under applicable State of New Hampshire Workers’
Compensation laws in connection with the performance of the
Services under this Agreement.

16. WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State 1o
enforce any provisions hereof after any Event of Default shall
be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to that Event of
Defauly, or any subsequent Event of Default. No express
failure to enforce any Event of Defautt shall be deemed a
waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other Event of Default
on the part of the Contracior.

17. NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party
shall be deemed 10 have been duly delivered or given at the
time of mailing by centified mail, postage prepaid, in a United
States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
given in blocks 1.2 and 1.4, herein.

18, AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended,
waived or discharged only by an instrument in writing signed
by the parties hercto and only after approval of such
amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and
Executive Council of the State of New Hampshire unless no

Page 4 of 4

such approval is required under the circumstances pursuant to
State law, rule or policy.

19. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS.
This Agreement shail be construed in accordance with the
laws of the Siate of New Hampshire, and is binding upon and
inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assigns. The wording used in this Agreement
is the wording chasen by the parties to express their mutual
intent, and no rule of construction shall be applied against or
in favor of any party.

20. THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend 10
benefit any third parties and this Agreement shall not be
construed to confer any such benefit.

21. HEADINGS. The headings throughout the Agreement
are for reference purposes only, and the words contained
therein shall in no way be held to explain, modify, amplify or
aid in the interpretation, construction or meaning of the
provisions of this Agreement.

22. SPECIAL PROVISIONS. Additional provisions set
forth in the attached EXHIBIT C are incorporated herein by
reference.

23. SEVERABILITY. Inthe event any of the provisions of
this Agreement are held by a court of competent jurisdiction 1o
be contrary (o any state or federal law, the remaining
provisions of this Agreement will remain in full force and
effect.

24. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may
be executed in a number of counterparts, each of which shall
be deemed an original, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
Agreements and understandings relating hereto.

Contractor lnitialsjw
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community and Faith Based Initiative to '
Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families

Exhibit A

Scope of Services

1. Provisions Applicable to All Services
1.1.  The Contractor will submit a detailed description of the language assistance services
they will provide to persons with limited English proficiency to ensure meaningful
access to their programs and/or services within ten (10) days of the contract effective
date.

1.2.  The Contractor agrees that, to the extent future legisiative action by the New
Hampshire General Court or federal or state court orders may have an impact on the
Services described herein, the State Agency has the right to modify Service pricrities
and expenditure requirements under this Agreement so as to achieve compliance
therewith. :

2. Scope of Services
2.1. The Contractor shall maintain a license as a child-placement agency and shall meet

the training and qualifications in accordance with He-C 6448.

2.2. The Contractor shall engage community and faith based organizations in promoting
recruitment and retention of foster, relative, and adoptive parents which shall include,
‘but not be limited to:

2.2.1. Introductions from current partners.
2.2.2. Emails.

22.3. Phone calls.

2.2.4. Face-to-face meetings.

2.2.5. “Faith Forums” which are meetings to discuss the needs in specific communities
and ways to work together more effectively. Members include, but are not limited
to:

2.2.5.1. Faith leaders.
2.2.5.2.  Other agency representatives.
2.2.5.3. Interested citizens.

2.3. The Contractor shall assist the Division for Children, Youth, and Families (DCYF) with
outreach to community and faith based organizations which shall include, but not be
limited to:

2.3.1. Inviting all representatives from faith communities within a half hour of a “Faith
Forum" event by:

2.3.1.1.  Creating a list of invitees based on an internet search.

2.31.2. Sending out emails.

Bethany Christian Services Exhibit A Contractor Inilials
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community and Faith Based Initiative to
Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families

Exhibit A

2.3.1.3.  Making phone calls.

2.3.2. Providing a "Heart Gallery” which includes child-specific information and waiting
child profiles and pictures, to churches and community groups willing to display
current photos and information.

2.4. The Contractor shall act as a clearinghouse of information on recruitment and
retention of foster and adoptive parents within community and faith based
organizations. Clearinghouse information shall be provided to these organizations
using various methods including, but not limited to:

2.4.1. Sending out monthly or bi-monthly email updates.

2.4.2. Building the “Helping Hands" list for each region for the Faithfully One by One
Program. This list contains volunteers interested in how they can support
families who foster or adopt a child.

2.5. The Contractor shall expand participation in the Community and Faith Based Advisory
Council to include a greater representation of community and faith based
organizations as evidenced by attendance at council meetings by using strategies
including, but not limited to:

2.5.1. Planning and managing events including, but not limited to:

2.5.1.1. Annual May foster, kinship, and adoptive family celebration (hereafter
“May celebration™.

2.5.1.2. Campership committee.

25.1.3  Subcommittee 1o assist youth retuming to home communities from the
Sununu Youth Center. '

2.5.2. QOrganizing and leading “Faith Forums.”

2.6. The Contractor shall provide education and training to community and faith based
coordinators in each organization participating in this initiative including, but not
limited to:

2.6.1. Presenting on current needs at faith communities.

2.6.2. Having other agencies present at "Faith Forums” which may include, but are not

limited to:
2.6.2.1. DCYF.
2622  Grant staff.
26.23. CASA

2.6.2.4. Individuals who can provide testimonials of how needs have been met or
what needs remain unmet.

Belhany Christian Services Exhibit A Contractor Initials JLP
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Exhibit A

2.6.3. Presenting on lopics such as:
2.6.3.1.  Adoption options.
2.6.3.2. Foster parent application process.
26.33. Safe Families for Children.
2.6.3.4. Ways to support children and families already in local communities,
2.6.3.5. Whatis the Community and Faith Based Initiative?
. 2.6.4. Having a Bethany Fellowship Dinner to share testimonials.

2.7. The Contractor shall promote the support of foster, relative, and adoptive parents
within their identified community and faith based organizations by facilitating
connections and assisting in sustaining connections between organizations and
foster, relative, and adoptive parents through methods including, but not limited to:

2.7.1. Collaborating with current partners, such as Make Over Ministry.
2.7.2. Employing online resources, such as the virtual clothes closet.

2.7.3. Requesting assistance from churches and agencies via the Helping Hands email
list.

2.7.4. Requesting assistance from to local groups, community agencies, or church
teams for specific requests, such as the need for a home renovation.

2.7.5. Holding events such as the May celebration.

2.8. The Contractor shall coordinate with DCYF staff, particularly the resource workers, in
order to assist with activities including, but not limited to:

2.8.1. Recruiting foster and adoptive parents through a variety of recruitment initiative
and events.

2.8.2. Organizing and implementing retention events for foster, relative, and adoptive
families.

2.8.3. Supporting foster, relative, and adoptive families by coordinating the donation of
goods including, but not limited to:

2.8.3.1.  Fumiture,

2.8.3.2. Clothing.

2833 Toys.

2.8.3.4. Donations for extracurricular and recreational activities for the children.

2.8.4. Assisting foster, relative, and adoptive families by coordinating the donation of
services o assist with meeting licensing requirements such as hard-wired smoke
detector installation.

Beathany Christian Services Exhibit A Contractor Initials
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Exhibit A

2.9. The Contractor shall organize and implement appreciation and celebration events for
foster, relative, and adoptive families including, but not limited to:

2.91. May celebration.

2.9.2. Christmas party.

29.3. Faith Forums.

294 May Foster Family event.
2.9.5. November Adoption event.

3. Definitions
3.1. Adoptive Families — Families who have adopied children from the guardianship of

the Division for Children, Youth, and Families,

3.2. Clearinghouse — An agency or organization that collects and distributes information
about a specific subject.

3.3. Community and Faith Based Advisory Council — The advisory council is
comprised of members of community and faith based organizations who commit to bi-
monthly meetings, advise the Contractor on information shared at the meeting, and
assist with planning activities related to the grant.

3.4. DCYF (Division) — Division for Children, Youth, and Families.
3.5. DHHS (Department) — Department of Health and Human Services.

3.6. Foster Families — Families that provide care to children who are in the custody of
DCYF.

3.7. He-C 6448 -New Hampshire Division for Children, Youth, and Families' Rules
regarding the licensing requirements for child-placing agencies.

3.8. Relative Providers - Relatives of children who are in the custody of DCYF and are
providing care to these children.

3.9. Resource Workers ~ Employees of DCYF who are charged with recruiting, licensing,
and supporting foster/adoptive homes.

4, Reporting
4.1. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting based on Department

requirements which shall include, but not be limited to:
4.1.1. The numbers and types of requests received and fulfilled from the district offices.
4.1.2. Alist of speaking engagements.
41.3. A summary of events which were held as part of the contract.

4.1.4. The number of people who expressed an interest in becoming foster or adoptive
parents as a result of the speaking engagements and events.

Bethany Christian Services Exhibil A Cantractor Inilials \J (f
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5. Performance Measures )
5.1. The Contractor shall ensure that following performance indicators are achieved for the

time period specified and are monitored monthly to measure the effectiveness of the
agreement:

5.1.1. The Contractor shall fulfill at least five hundred (500) requests per calendar
year for support for foster, relative, and adoptive families and their children.

5.1.2. The Contractor shall provide a list to the Department of at least sixty (60)
people per calendar year who express an interested in becoming foster or
adoptive parents and have been referred to DCYF.

51.3. The Contractor shall provide semi-annual reporting based on Department
requirements. :
5.1.4. The Contractor shall organize and oversee at least two Faith Forums per year.
5.2. The Coniractor shall develop and submit to the Department a corrective action plan
for any performance measure that was not achieved within one (1) month after the
required completion date.

Ju

Bethany Christian Services Exhibit A + Contractor Initials
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Methods and Conditions Precedent to Payment

1. ‘_ The State shall pay the Contractor an amount not to exceed the Form P-37, Block 1.8,
Price Limitation for the services provided by the Contractor pursuant to Exhibit A, Scope
of Services. '

2. The Contractor agrees to provide the services in Exhibit A, Scope of Service in

compliance with funding requirements. Failure to meet the scope of services may
jeopardize the funded contractor's current and/or future funding.

3. This contract is funded with funds from the Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance
(CFDA) #93.556, Department of Health and Human Services, Administration for Children
and Families, Promoting Safe and Stable Families.

4. The Contractor shall provide twenty-five percent (25%) matching funds as shown in
Exhibit B-1 through B-3 (Budgets).
5. Payment for said services shall be made monthly as follows:

5.1. Payment shall be on a cost reimbursement basis for actual expenditures incurred in
the fulfillment of this agreement, and shall be in accordance with the approved line
item.

5.2. The Contractor will submit an invcice in a form satisfactory to the State by the
twentieth working day of each month, which identifies and requests reimbursement
for authorized expenses incurred in the prior month. The invoice must be completed,
signed, dated and returmed to the Department in order to initiate payment. The
Contractor agrees to keep records of their activities related to Department programs
and services.

5.3. The Contractor shall document the required match on all invoices. Failure to provide
and/or document match may result in payment being withheld pending provision of
match.

5.4. The State shall make payment to the Contractor within thirty (30) days of receipt of
each invoice, subsequent to approval of the submitted invoice and if sufficient funds
are available. Contractors will keep detailed records of their activities related to
DHHS-funded programs and services.

55. The final invoice shall be due to the State no later than forty (40) days after the
contract Form P-37, Block 1.7 Completion Date.

5.6. In lieu of hard copies, all invoices may be assigned an electronic signature and
emailed to: DCYFInvoices@dhhs.nh.gov

57. Payments may be withheld pending receipt of required reports or documentation as
identified in Exhibit A, Scope of Services and in this Exhibit B.

6. The Contractor shall pursue any and all appropriate public sources of funds that are
applicable to the funding of the Services, operations prevention, acquisition, or
rehabilitation. Appropriate records shall be maintained by the Contractor to document
actual funds received or denials of funding from such public sources of funds.

\.J L 4
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Community and Falth Based Initiative to
Support Foster, Relative, and Adoptive Families

Exhibit B
7. When the Contract Price limitation is reached, the Contractor shall continue to operate at
full capacity at no charge to the Division Children, Youth, and Families for the duration of
the Contract Period.

8. Notwithstanding paragraph 18 of the General Provisions P-37, changes limited to
adjusting amounts between budget line items, refated items, amendments of related
budget exhibits within the price limitation, and to adjusting encumbrances between State
Fiscal Years, may be made by written agreement of both parties and may be made
without obtaining approvatl of the Governor and Executive Council.

Belhany Christian Services Exhibit B Contractor lnitialsJ (j
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Exhibit B-2

New Hampshire Departmant of Headth and Human Services

Blddet/Program Name: Bethany Christian Services of Northerm New England
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Exhibit 83
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit C

SPECIAL PROVISIONS

Contractors Obligations: The Contractor covenants and agrees that all funds received by the Gontractor
under the Contract shall be used anly as payment to the Contractor for services provided to eligible
individuals and, in the furtherance of the aforesaid covenants, the Contractor hereby covenants and
agrees as follows: i

1. Compliance with Federal and State Laws: If the Contraclor is permitted to determine the eligibility
of individuats such eligibility determination shall be made in accordance with applicable federal and
state laws, regutations, orders, guidelines, policies and procedures.

2, Time and Manner of Determination: Eligibility determinations shall be made on forms provided by
the Department for that purpose and shall be mads and remade at such times as are prescribed by
the Department.

3. Documentation: In addition to the determination forms required by the Department, the Contractor
shall maintain a data file on each recipient of services hereunder, which file shall include all-
information necessary to support an eligibility determination and such other information as the
Depariment requests. The Contractor shall fumish the Department with all forms and documentation
regarding eligibility determinations that the Department may request or require.

4. Fair Hearings: The Contractor understands that all applicants for services hereunder, as well as
individuals declared ineligible have a right to a fair hearing regarding that determination. The
Contractor hereby covenanis and agrees that all applicants for services shall be permitted to fill out
an application form and that each applicant or re-apptlicant shall be informed of hisfher right to a fair
hearing in accordance with Department regulations.

5. Gratuities or Kickbacks: The Contraclor agrees that it is a breach of this Contract to accept or
make a payment, gratuily or offer of employment an behalf of the Contractor, any Sub-Contractor or
the State in order to Influence the performance of the Scope of Wark detailed in Exhibit A of this
Contract. The State may terminate this Contract and any sub-contract or sub-agreement if it is
determined that payments, gratuities or offers of employment of any kind were offered or received by
any officials, officers, employees or agents of the Contractor or Sub-Contractor.

6. Retroactive Payments: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract or in any
other document, contract or understanding, it is expressiy understood and agreed by the parties
hereto, that no payments will be made hereunder to reimburse the Contractor for costs incurred for
any purpose or for any services provided to any individual prior to the Effective Date of the Contract
and no payments shall be made for expenses incurred by the Contractor for any services provided
prior to the date on which the individual applies for services or (except as otherwise provided by the
federal regulations} prior to a determination that the individual is eligible for such services.

7. Conditions of Purchase: Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in the Contract, nothing
herein contained shall be deemed to obligate or require the Department to purchase services
hereunder at a rate which reimburses the Contractor in excess of the Contractors costs, at a rate
which exceeds the amounts reasonable and necessary to assure the quality of such service, or at a
rate which exceeds the rate charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals or other third party
funders for such service. If at any lime during the term of this Contract or after receipt of the Final
Expenditure Report hereunder, the Depariment shall determine that the Contractor has used
payments hereunder to reimburse items of expense other than such cosls, or has received payment
in excess of such costs or in excess of such rates charged by the Contractor to ineligible individuals
or other third party funders, the Department may eiect to:

7.1. Renegotiate the rates for payment hereunder, in which event new rates shall be established:;
7.2, Deduct from any future payment to the Contractor the amount of any prior reimbursement in

excess of costs; u
Exhibil C - Special Provisions Contractor tnitials O’
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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7.3. Demand repayment of the excess payment by the Contractor in which event failure to make
such repayment shall constitute an Event of Default hereunder. When the Contractor is
permittad to determine the eligibility of individuals for services, the Contractor agrees lo
reimburse the Department for all funds paid by the Department to the Contractor for services
provided to any individual who is found by the Department to be ineligible for such services at
any time during the period of retention of records established herein.

RECORDS: MAINTENANCE, RETENTION, AUDIT, DISCLOSURE AND CONFIDENTIALITY:

8. Maintenance of Records: In addition to the eligibility records specified above, the Contractor
covenants and agrees to maintain the following records during the Contract Period:

8.1. Fiscal Records: books, records, documents and other data evidencing and reflecting all costs
and other expenses incurred by the Contractor in the performance of the Contract, and all
income received or collected by the Contractor during the Contract Period, said records to be
maintained in accordance wilh accounting procedures and practices which sufficiently and
properly reflect all such ¢osts and expenses, and which are accepiable to the Department, and
to include, without limitation, all ledgers, books, records, and original evidence of costs such as
purchase requisitions and orders, vouchers, requisitions for materials, inventories, valuations of
in-kind contributions, labor time cards, payrolls, and other records requested or required by the
Department.

8.2. Statistical Records: Statislical, enrollment, attendance or visit records for each recipient of
servicas during the Contract Period, which records shall include all records of application and
eligibility {including all forms required to determine eligibility for each such recipient), records
regarding the provision of services and all invoices submitted to the Department to obtain
payment for such services.

8.3. Medical Records: Where appropriate and as prescribed by the Department regulations, the
Contractor shall retain medical records on each patient/recipient of services.

9. Audit: Contractor shall submit an annual audit to the Department within 60 days after the close of the
agency fiscal year. Itis recommended that the report be prepared in accordance with the provision of
Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, "Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non
Profit Organizations® and the provisions of Standards for Audit of Governmental Organizations,
Programs, Activities and Functions, issued by the US General Accounting Office (GAO standards) as
they pertain to financial compliance audits. .
9.1. Audit and Review: During the lerm of this Contract and the pericd for retention hereunder, the

Department, the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services, and any of their
designated representatives shall have access to all reports and records maintained pursuant to
the Contract for purposes of audit, examination, excerpts and-transcripts.

9.2. Audit Liabilities: In addition to and not in any way in limitation of obligations of the Contract, it is
understood and agreed by the Contractor that the Contractor shall be held liable for any state
or federa! audit exceptions and shalt return to the Department, all payments made under the
Contract to which exception has been taken or which have been disallowed because of such an
exception.

10. Confidentiality of Records: All information, reports, and records maintained hereunder or collected
in connection with the performance of the services and the Contract shall be confidential and shall not
be disclosed by the Contractor, provided however, that pursuant to state laws and the regulations of
the Department regarding the use and disclosure of such information, disclosure may be made to
public officials requiring such information in connection with their official duties and for purposes
directly connected to the administration of the services and the Contract; and provided further, that
the use or disclosure by any party of any information concerning a rectpient for any purpose not
direclly connected with the administration of the Department or the Contractor's responsibilities with
respect to purchased services hereunder is prohibited except on written consent of the recipient, his

attormey or guardian,
Jw
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New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
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Notwithstanding anything to the contrary cantained herein the covenants and conditions contained in
the Paragraph shall survive the termination of the Contract for any reason whatsoaver.

11. Reports: Fiscal and Statistical: The Contractor agrees to submit the following reports at the following
limes if requested by the Department.

11.1.  Interim Financiali Reports: Written interim financial reports containing a detailed description of
all costs and non-allowable expenses incurred by the Contractor to the date of the report and
containing such other information as shall be deemed satisfactory by the Department to
justify the rate of payment hereunder. Such Financial Reports shall be submitted on the form
designated by the Department or deemed satisfactory by the Depariment.

11.2.  Final Report: A final report shall be submitted within thirty (30) days after the end of the term
of this Contract. The Final Report shalf be in a form satisfactery to the Department and shall
contain a summary statement of progress toward goals and objectives staled in the Proposal
and other information required by the Department.

12. Completion of Services: Disallowance of Costs: Upon the purchase by the Department of the
maximum number of units provided for in the Contract and upon payment of the price limitation
hereunder, the Contract and all the obligations of the parties hereunder (except such obligations as,
by the terms of the Contract are to be performed after the end of the term of this Contract and/or
survive the termination of the Contract) shail terminate, provided however, that if, upon review of the
Final Expenditure Report the Depariment shall disallow any expenses claimed by the Contractor as
costs hereunder the Department shall retain the right, at its discretion, to deduct the amount of such
expenses as are disallowed or to recover such sums from the Contractor.

13. Credits: All documents, notices, press releases, research reports and other materials prepared
during or resulting from the performance of the services of the Contract shall include the following
statement:

13.1.  The preparation of this {report, document etc.) was financed under a Contract with the State
of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services, with funds provided in part
by the Stale of New Hampshire andfor such other funding sources as were available or
required, e.g., the United States Department of Health and Human Services.

14. Prior Approval and Copyright Ownership: All materials {written, video, audio) produced or
purchased under the contract shalt have prior approval from DHHS befare printing, production,
distribution or use. The DHHS will retain copyright ownership for any and all original matenals
produced, including, but not limited to, brochures, resource direclories, protocols or guidelines,
posters, or reports, Contractor shall not reproduce any materials produced under the contract without
prior written approval from DHHS.

15. Operation of Facilities: Compliance with Laws and Regulations: In the operation of any facilities
for providing services, the Contractor shall comply with all laws, orders and regulations of federal,
state, county and municipal authorities and with any direction of any Public Officer or officers
pursuant to laws which shall impose an order or duty upon the contractor with respect to the
operation of the facility or the provision of the services at such facility. If any governmental license or
permit shall be required for the operation of the said facility or the performance of the said services,
the Contractor will procure said license or permit, and will at all times comply with the terms and
conditions of each such license or permit. In connection with the foregoing requirements, the
Contractor hereby covenants and agrees that, during the term of this Contract the facilities shall
comply with all rules, orders, regulations, and requirements of the State Office of the Fire Marshal and
the local fire protection agency, and shall be in conformance with local building and zoning codes, by-
laws and regulations.

16. Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP}: The Contractor will provide an Equal Employment
Opportunity Plan (EEOP) to the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs (OCR), if it has
received a single award of $500,000 or more. If the recipient receives $25,000 or more and has 50 or
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more employees, it will mainlain a current EEQP on file and submit an EEOQP Certification Form to the
OCR, certifying that its EEOP is on file. For recipients receiving less than $25,000, or public grantees
with fewer than 50 employees, regardless of the amount of the award, the recipient will provide an
EEOP Certification Form to the OCR cerlifying it is not required to submit or maintain an EEQP, Nan-
profit organizations, Indian Tribes, and medical and educational institutions are exempt from the
EEQP requirement, but are required to submit a certification form to the OCR to claim the exemption.
EEOP Certification Forms are available at: hitp://www ojp.usdoj/about/ocr/pdfs/cent.pdf.

17. Limited English Proficiency (LEP): As clarified by Executive Order 13166, Improving Access to
Services for persons with Limited English Proficiency, and resulting agency guidance, national origin
discrimination includes discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). To ensure
compliance with the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 and Title VI of the Civil
Rights Act of 1964, Conlractors must lake reasonabie steps to ensure that LEP persons have
meaningful access lo ils programs.

18. Pilot Program for Enhancement of Contractor Empioyee Whistleblowar Protections: The
following shall apply to all contracts that exceed the Simplified Acquisition Threshold as defined in 48
CFR 2.101 (currently, $150,000)

CONTRACTOR EMPLOYEE WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS AND REQUIREMENT TQ INFORM EMPLOYEES OF
WHISTLEBLOWER RIGHTS (SEP 2013)

(a) This contract and employees working on this contract will be subject lo the whistleblower rights
and remedies in the pilot program on Contractor employee whistleblower protections established at

41 1U.5.C. 4712 by section 828 of the National Defense Authorizatlon Act for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L.
112-239) and FAR 3.908.

[

{b) The Contractor shall inform its employees in writing, in the predominant language of the workforce,
of employee whistleblower rights and protections under 41 U.S.C. 4712, as described in section
3.908 of the Federal Acquisition Regulation.

{c) The Contractor shall insert the substance of this ctause, including this paragraph (c}, in all
subcontracts over the simplified acquisition threshold.

19. Subcontractors: DHHS recognizes that the Contractor may choose to use subcontractors with
greater expertise to perform certain health care services or functions for efficiency or convenience,
but the Contractor shall retain the responsibility and accountability for the function(s). Prior to
subcontracting, the Contractor shall evaluate the subcontractor's ability to perform the delegated
function(s). This is accomplished through a written agreement that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities of the subcontractor and provides for revoking the delegation or imposing sanctions if
the subcontractor's perfarmance is not adequate. Subcontractors are subject to the same contractual
conditions as the Contractor and the Contractor is responsible to ensure subcontractor compliance
with those condilions.

When the Contractor delegates a funclion to a subcontractor, the Contractor shall do the fallowing:

19.1. Evaluate the prospective subcontractor's ability to perform the activities, before delegating
the function

19.2.  Have a written agreement with the subcentractor that specifies activities and reporting
responsibilities and how sanctions/revocation will be managed if the subcontractor's

performance is not adequate

19.3. Monitor the subcontractor's performance an an ongoing basis
0672714 Page 4 of 5 Date q - / "
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19.4.  Provide to DHHS an annual schedule identifying all subcontractors, delegated functions and
responsibilities, and when the subcontractor's performance will be reviewed
19.5. DHHS shall, at its discretion, review and approve all subcontracts.

If the Contractor identifies deficiencies or areas for improvement are identified, the Contractor shall
take corrective action.

DEFINITIONS
As used in the Contract, the following terms shall have the following meanings:

COSTS: Shall mean those direct and indirect ilems of expense determined by the Depariment 1o be
allowable and reimbursable in accordance with cost and accounting principles established in accordance
with state and federal laws, regulations, rules and orders.

DEPARTMENT: NH Department of Health and Human Services.

FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT GUIDELINES: Shall mean that section of the Contractor Manual which is
entitled "Financial Management Guidelines” and which contains the regutations govemning the financial
activities of contractor agencies which have contracted with the State of NH to receive funds.

PROPOSAL: If applicable, shall mean the document submitted by the Contractor on a form or forms
required by the Department and containing a description of the Services to be pravided to eligible
individuals by the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Conltract and setting forth
the total cost and sources of revenue for each service to be provided under the Contract.

UNIT: For each service that the Contractor is to provide 1o eligible individuals hereunder, shall mean that
period of time or that specified activity determined by the Department and specified in Exhibit B of the
Contract.

FEDERAL/STATE LAW: Wherever federal or stale laws, regulations, rules, orders, and policies, etc. are
referred to in the Contract, the said reference shall be deemed to mean all such laws, regulations, etc. as
they may be amended or revised from the time to time.

CONTRACTOR MANUAL: Shall mean that document prepared by the NH Depariment of Administrative
Services containing a compilation of all requlations promulgated pursuant to the New Hampshire
Administrative Procedures Act. NH RSA Ch 541-A, for the purpose of implementing State of NH and
federal regulations promulgated thereunder.

SUPPLANTING OTHER FEDERAL FUNDS: The Contractor guarantees that funds provided under this
Contract will not supplant any existing federal funds available for these services.

Exhibit G - Special Provisions Contractor tnitials
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REVISIONS TO GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Subparagraph 4 of the General Provisions of this contract, Conditional Nature of Agreement, is replaced as

follows:

4. CONDITIONAL NATURE OF AGREEMENT.
Notwithstanding any provision of this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Slate hereunder,
including without limitation, the continuance of payments, in whole or in part, under this Agreement are
contingent upon continued appropnation or availability of funds, including any subsequent changes to the
appropriation or availability of funds affected by any state or federal legislative or executive action that
reduces, eliminates, or otherwise modifies the appropriation or availability of funding for this Agreement
and the Scope of Services provided in Exhibit A, Scope of Services, in whole or in parl. In no event shall
the State be liable for any payments hereunder in excaess of appropriated or available funds. in the event
of a reduction, termination or modification of appropriated or available funds, the State shall have the right
to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever. The Stale shall have the right to reduce,
terminate or modify services under this Agreement immediately upon giving the Contractor notice of such
reduction, termination or modification. The State shall not be required to transfer funds from any other
source or account into the Account(s) identified in block 1.8 of the General Provisions, Account Number,
or any other account, in the event funds are reduced or unavailable.

2. Subparagraph 10 of the General Provisions of this contract, Termination, is amended by adding the following
language:; :

10.1 The State may terminate the Agreement at any time for any reason, at the sole discretion of the State,
30 days after giving the Contractor writien notice that the Siate is exercising its option to terminate the
Agreement.

10.2 In the event of early termination, the Conltractor shall, within 15 days of notice of early termination,
develop and submil lo the State a Transition Plan for services under the Agreement, including but not
limited to, identifying the present and future needs of clients receiving services under.the Agreement
and establishes a process to meet those needs.

10.3 The Contractor shall fully cooperate with the State and shall promptly provide detailed information to

support the Transition Plan including, but not limited to, any information or data requested by the
State related to the termination of the Agreement and Transition Plan and shall provide ongoing
communication and revisions of the Transition Plan to the Stale as requested.

10.4 in the event that services under the Agreement, including but not limited lo clients receiving services
under the Agreement are transilioned to having services delivered by another entity including
contracted providers or the State, the Contractor shall provide a process for uninterrupted delivery of
services in the Transltion Pian.

10.5 The Contraclor shall establish a method of nolifying clients and other affected individuals about the
transition. The Contractor shall include the proposed communications in its Transition Plan submitted
to the State as described above.

3. Extension:
The Department reserves the right to renew the Contract for up to two (2} additional years, subject lo the
conlinued availabitity of funds, satisfactory performance of services and approval by the Governor and
Executive Council.

JU
Contractor Initials

R
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE REQUIREMENTS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41
U.5.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections
1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following Certification: '

ALTERNATIVE | - FOR GRANTEES OTHER THAN INDIVIDUALS

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 5151-5160 of the Drug-Free
Workplace Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.5.C. 701 et seq.). The January 31,
1989 regulations were amended and published as Part Il of the May 25, 1990 Federal Register (pages
21681-21691), and require certification by grantees (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-
contractors), prior to award, that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the
requlation provides that a grantee (and by inference, sub-grantees and sub-contractors) that is a State
may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal year in lieu of centificates for
each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the certification. The centificate set out below is a
material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False
certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or
termination of grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Contractors using this form should
send it to:

Commissioner

NH Department of Health and Human Services
129 Pieasant Street,

Concord, NH 03301-6505

1. The grantee certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

11. Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the grantee’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of such
prchibition; :

1.2. Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about
1.2.1. The dangers of drug abuse in the workplace;

1.2.2. The grantee's policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;

1,2.3. Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance programs; and

1.2.4. The penatties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the warkplace;

1.3.  Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the performance of the grant be
given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

1.4. Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condilion of
employment under the grant, the employee will
1.4.1. Abide by the terms of the statement; and
1.4.2. Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a criminal drug

statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days after such
conviction;

1.5. Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2 from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such conviction.
Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position title, to every grant
officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working, unless the Federal agency

JgJ
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has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices. Notice shall include the
idenlification number(s) of each affected grant;
1.6. Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph 1.4.2, with respect to any employee who is so convicted
1.6.1. Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or
1.68.2. Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, State, or local health,
law enforcement, or cther appropriate agency;
1.7.  Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 1.5, and 1.5.

2. The grantee may insert in the space provided below the site(s) for the performance of work done in
connection with the specific grant.

Place of Performance (street address, city, county, state, zip code) (list each location)
Check O if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

- Contractor Name:

9-370 | T Lk Fegua

Date Name:
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CERTIFIC REGARDING LOBBYING

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees ta comply with the provisions of
Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New Restrictions on Lobbying, and
31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11
and 1.12 of the General Provisions execule the following Certification;

US DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION - CONTRACTORS
US DEPARTMENT OF AGRICULTURE - CONTRACTORS

Programs (indicate applicable program covered):
*“Temporary Assistance to Needy Families under Title |V-A
*Child Support Enforcement Program under Title IV-D
*Sacial Services Block Grant Program under Title XX
*Medicaid Program under Title X1X

*‘Community Services Block Grant under Title VI

“Chitd Care Development Block Grant under Title tV

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

1. No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the undersigned, to
any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member
of Congress, an officer or employee of Cangress, or an employee of a Member of Cangress in
connection with the awarding of any Federal contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or
modification of any Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention
sub-grantee or sub-contractor).

2. if any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any person for
influencing or attempting ta influence an officer or employee of any agency. a Member of Congress,
an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this
Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement {and by specific mention sub-grantee or sub-
contractor), the undersigned shall complete and submit Standard Form LLL, (Discliosure Form to
Report Lobbying, in accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.)

3. The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the award
document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and contracts under grants,
loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall certify and disclose accordingly.

This certification is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction
was made or entered into. Submission of this certification is a prerequisite for making or entering into this
transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code. Any person who fails to file the required
certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for
each such failure.

Contractor Name:

a-3- 11 e b ‘)&T‘A
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION
ND OTHER RE N LITY MATTER

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12549 and 45 CFR Part 76 regarding Debarment,
Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further agrees to have the Contractor's
representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions execute the following
Certification:

INSTRUCTIONS FOR CERTIFICATION
1. By signing and submitting this proposal {contract), the prospective primary participant is providing the
certification set out below.

2. The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily result in denial
of participation in this covered transaction. lf necessary, the prospective participant shall submit an
explanation of why il cannot provide the certification. The cenrtification or explanation will be
considered in connection with the NH Department of Health and Human Services’ (DHHS)
determination whether to enter into this transaction. However, failure of the prospective primary
participant to furnish a cedtification or an explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in
this transaction,

3. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed
when DHHS determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the prospective
primary participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federa! Government, DHHS may terminate this transaction for cause or default.

4, The prospeclive primary paricipant shall pravide immediate written notice to the DHHS agency to
whom this proposal (contract) is submitted if at any time the prospective primary participant learns
that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed
circumstances,

5. Theterms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier covered
transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” "principal,” “proposal,” and
“voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in the Definitions and
Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549: 45 CFR Part 76. See the
attached definitions.

8. The praspeclive primary participant agrees by submitting this proposal (contract) that, should the
proposed covered transaclion be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debamed, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily exciuded
from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DHHS,

7. The prospective primary participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include the
clause titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion -
Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DHHS, without madification, in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

8. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a
Jower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily excluded
from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the cerification is erroneous, A participant may
decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each
participant may, but is not required to, check the Nonprocurement List {of excluded parties).

9. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records
in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and

Exhibit F - Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension Contractor nitials O/Lf
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information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent
person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

10. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a participant in a
covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is
suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in
addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, DHHS may terminate this transaction
for cause or default.

PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS
11. The prospective primary participant certifies to the best of its knowtedge and belief, that it and its
principals:

11.1.

1.2

11.3.

114,

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal department or agency:

have not within a three-year period preceding this proposal (contract) been convicted of or had
a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal offense in
connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a public (Federal, State or local)
transaction or a contract under a public transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust
statutes or commission of embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of
records, making false statements, or receiving stolen property;

are not presently indicted far otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a governmental entity
(Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the offenses enumerated in paragraph (1){b)
af this certification; and

have not within a three-year period preceding this application/proposal had one or more public
transactions (Federal, State or lacal) terminated for cause or default.

12. Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify lo any of the statements in this
certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

LOWER TIER COVERED TRANSACTIONS
13. By signing and submitting this lower tier proposal (contract), the prospective lower tier participant, as
defined in 45 CFR Part 76, certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief that it and its principals:

13.1.

13.2.

are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or

voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any federal department or agency.

where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the above, such
praspective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal (contract).

14. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposa! (contract) that it will
include this clause entitled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, tneligibility, and
Voluntary Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” without modification in all lower tier covered
transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICATION OF COMPLIANC TH REQUI NTS PERTAINING T
[ OND! | ON, E JREATMENT OF - NI [0 N

WHISTLEBLOWER PROTECTIONS

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor's
represeniative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, to execute the following
certification: ’

Contractor will comply, and will require any subgrantees or subcontractors to comply, with any applicable
federal nondiscrimination requirements, which may include:

- the Omnibus Crime Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (42 U.S.C. Section 3789d) which prohibits
recipients of federal funding under this statute from discriminating, either in employment practices or in
the delivery of services or benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act
requires certain recipients to produce an Equa! Employment Opportunity Plan;

- the Juvenile Justice Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (42 U.S.C. Section 5672(b)) which adopts by
reference, the civil rights obligations of the Safe Streets Act. Recipients of federal funding under this
statute are prohibited from discriminating, either in employment practices ar in the delivery of services or
benefits, on the basis of race, color, religion, national origin, and sex. The Act includes Equal
Employment Opportunity Plan requirements;

- the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (42 U.5.C. Section 2000d, which prohibits recipients of federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of race, color, or national origin in any program or aclivity),

- the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S5.C. Section 734), which prohibits recipients of Federal financial
assistance from discriminating on the basis of disability, in regard to employment and the delivery of
services or benefits, in any program or activity;

- the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42 U.S.C. Sections 12131-34), which prohibits
discrimination and ensures equal opportunity for persons with disabilities in employment, State and local
government services, public accommodations, commercial facilities, and transportation;

- the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. Sections 1681, 1683, 1685-86), which prohibits
discrimination on the basis of sex in federally assisted education programs;

- the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. Sections 6106-07), which prohibits discrimination on the
basis of age in programs or activities receiving Federal financial assistance. It does not inciude
employment discrimination;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 31 (L.8. Department of Justice Regulations — OJJOP Grant Programs); 28 C.F.R. pt. 42
(U.S. Department of Justice Regulations — Nondiscrimination; Equal Employment Opportunity; Policies
and Procedures); Executive Order No. 13279 (equal protection of the laws for faith-based and community
organizations); Executive Order No. 13559, which provide fundamental principles and policy-making
criteria for partnerships with faith-based and neighborhood organizations;

-28 C.F.R. pt. 38 (U.S. Department of Justice Requlations — Equal Treatment for Faith-Based
Organizations); and Whistleblower protections 41 U.S.C. §4712 and The National Defense Authorizalion
Act (NDAA) for Fiscal Year 2013 (Pub. L. 112-239, enacted January 2, 2013} the Pilot Program for
Enhancement of Contract Employee Whistleblower Protections, which protects employees against
reprisal for certain whistle blowing activities in connection with federal grants and contracts.

The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which reliance is placed when the
agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the certification shall be grounds for
suspension of payments, suspension or termination of grants, or government wide suspension or

debament,
/‘
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In the event a Federal or State cour! or Federa} or State administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination after a due process hearing on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, or sex
against a recipient of funds, the recipient will forward a copy of the finding to the Office for Civil Rights, to
the applicable contracting agency or division within the Department of Health and Human Services, and
to the Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Ombudsman.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees by signature of the Contractor’s
representative as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Pravisions, to execute the following
certification:

1. By signing and submitting this proposal (contract) the Contractor agrees to comply with the provisions
indicated above.

Contractor Name:
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CERTIFICA EG NG RONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE

Public Law 103-227, Part C - Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also Known as the Pro-Children Act of 1594
{Act), reguires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor facility owned or leased or
contracted for by an entity and used routinely or regularly for the provision of health, day care, education,
or library services to children under the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federa) programs either
directly or through State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, or loan guarantee. The
law does not apply to children’s services provided in private residences, facilities funded solely by
Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient drug or alcohol treatment. Failure
to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil monetary penalty of up to
$1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative compliance order on the responsible entity,

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions agrees, by signature of the Contractor's

representative as identified in Section 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Provisions, lo execute the following

certification:

1. By signing and submitting this contract, the Contractor agrees to make reasonable efforts 1o comply
with all applicable provisions of Public Law 103-227, Part C, known as the Pro-Chikdren Act of 1994,

Contractor Name:

o
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HEALTH INSURANCE PORTABLITY ACT
BUSINESS ASSOCIATE AGREEMENT

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions of the Agreement agrees to
comply with the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act, Public Law 104-191 and
with the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health Information, 45
CFR Parls 160 and 164 applicable to business associates. As defined herein, ‘Busmess
Associate” shall mean the Contractor and subcontractors and agents of the Contractor that
receive, use or have access to protected health information under this Agreement and “Covered
Entity” shall mean the State of New Hampshire, Department of Health and Human Services.

(1) Definitions.
a. “Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term “Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations,

b. “Business Associate” has the meaning given such term in section 160.103 of Title 45, Code
of Federal Regulations.

c. “Covered Entity” has the-meaning given such term in section 160,103 of Title 45,
Code of Federal Regulations.

d. “Designated Record Set” shall have the same meaning as the term “designated record set”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

e. “Data Agaregation” shall have the same meaning as the term “data aggregation” in 45 CFR
Section 164.501.

f. “Health Care Operations” shall have the same meaning as the term “health care operations”
in 45 CFR Section 164.501.

g. “HITECH Act” means the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health
Act, TitleXItl, Subtitle D, Part 1 & 2 of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of
2009.

h. “HIPAA" means the Health Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1986, Public Law
104-191 and the Standards for Privacy and Security of Individually Identifiable Health
information, 45 CFR Parts 160, 162 and 164 and amendments thereto.

i. “Individual” shall have the same meaning as the term “individual” in 45 CFR Section 160.103
-and shali include a person who qualifies as a personal representative in accordance with 45
CFR Section 164,501{g).

j. “Privacy Rule" shall mean the Standards for Privacy of Individually Identifiable Health
Information at 45 CFR Parts 160 and 164, promulgated under HIPAA by the United States
Depariment of Health and Human Services.

k. “Protected Health Information” shall have the same meaning as the term “protected health
information” in 45 CFR Section 160.103, limited to the information created or received b
Business Associate from or on behalf of Covered Entity

32014 ' Exhibit | Contractor Inkials (//

Health insurance Portability Act
Business Associate Agreement q - 3 ’f 7
Page 1 of 6 Date



New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services

Exhibit |

. “Required by Law" shall have the same meaning as the term “required by law" in 45 CFR
Section 164.103.

m. "Secretary” shall mean the Secretary of the Depariment of Health and Human Services or
hisfher designee. :

n. "Security Rule” shall mean the Security Standards for the Protection of Electronic Protected
Health Information at 45 CFR Pan 164, Subpart C, and amendments thereto.

o. “Unsecured Protected Health Information” means protected health information that is not
secured by a technology standard that renders protected health information unusable,
unreadable, or indecipherable to unauthorized individuals and is developed or endarsed by
a standards developing organization that is accredited by the American National Standards
Institute. )

p. Other Definitions - All terms not otherwise defined herein shall have the meaning
established under 45 C.F.R. Parls 160, 162 and 164, as amended from time to time, and the
HITECH
Act.

(2) Business Associate Use and Disclosure of Protected Health Information.

a. Business Associate shall not use, disclose, maintain or transmit Protected Health
Information (PHI) except as reasonably necessary to provide the services outlined under
Exhibit A of the Agreement. Further, Business Associate, including but not limited to all
its directors, officers, employees and agents, shall not use, disclose, mainfain or transmit
PHI in any manner that would constitute a violation of the Privacy and Security Rule.

b. Business Associate may use or disclose PHI:
I For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate;
Il As required by law, pursuant to the terms set forth in paragraph d. below; or
. For data aggregation purposes for the health care operations of Covered
Entity.

C. To the extent Business Associate is permitied under the Agreement to disclose PHl 1o a
third party, Business Associate must obtain, prior to making any such disclosure, (i)
reasonable assurances from the third party that such PHI will be held confidentially and
used or further disclosed only as required by law or for the purpose for which it was
disclosed to the third party; and (ii) an agreement from such third party to notify Business
Associate, in accordance with the HIPAA Privacy, Security, and Breach Notification
Rules of any breaches of the confidentiality of the PHI, to the extent it has obtained
knowledge of such breach.

d. The Business Associate shall not, unless such disclosure is reasonably necessary to
provide services under Exhibit A of the Agreement, disclose any PHI in response to a
request for disclosure on the basis that it is required by law, without first notifying
Covered Entity so that Covered Entity has an opportunity to object to the disclosure and
to seek appropriate relief. If Covered Entity objects to such disclosure, the Busi?tp
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Associate shall refrain from disclosing the PHI until Covered Entity has exhausted all
remedies.

e. If the Covered Entity notifies the Business Associate that Covered Entity has agreed to
be bound by additional restrictions over and above those uses or disclosures or security
safeguards of PHI pursuant to the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall be bound by such additional restrictions and shall not disclose PHI in violation of
such additional restrictions and shall abide by any additional security safeguards.

(3) Obligations and Activities of Business Associate.

a. The Business Associate shall notify the Covered Entity’s Privacy Officer immediately
after the Business Associate becomes aware of any use or disclosure of protected
health information not provided for by.the Agreement including breaches of unsecured
protected health information and/or any security incident that may have an impact on the
protected health information of the Covered Entity.

b. The Business Associate shall immediately perform a risk assessment when it becomes
aware of any of the above situations. The risk assessment shall include, but not be
limited to:

o The nature and extent of the protected health information involved, including the
types of identifiers and the likelihood of re-identification;

o The unauthorized person used the protected health information or to whom the
disclosure was made;

o , Whether the protected health information was actually acquired or viewed

o The extent to which the risk to the protected health information has been
mitigated.

The Business Assaciate shall complete the risk assessment within 48 hours of the
breach and immediately report the findings of the risk assessment in writing to the
Covered Entity.

c. The Business Associate shall comply with all sections of the Privacy, Security, and
Breach Notification Rule.

d. Business Associate shall make available all of its internal policies and procedures, books
and records relating to the use and disclosure of PHI received from, or created or
received by the Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity to the Secretary for
purposes of determining Covered Entity's compliance with HIPAA and the Privacy and
Security Rule.

e. Business Assaciate shall require all of its business associates that receive, use or have
access to PHI under the Agreement, to agree in writing to adhere to the same
restrictions and conditions on the use and disclosure of PHI contained herein, including
the duty to retumn or destroy the PHI as provided under Section 3 (). The Covered Entity
shall be considered a direct third party beneficiary of the Contractor’s business associate
agreements with Contractor's intended business associates, who will be receiving PHI
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pursuant to this Agreement, with rights of enforcement and indemnification from such
business associates who shall be governed by standard Paragraph #13 of the standard
contract provisions (P-37) of this Agreement for the purpose of use and disclosure of
protected health information.

f. Within five {5) business days of receipt of a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall make available during normal business hours at its offices all
records, books, agreements, policies and procedures relating to the use and disclosure
of PHI to the Covered Entity, for purposes of enabling Covered Entity to determine
Business Associate's compliance with the terms of the Agreement.

Q. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity,
Business Associate shall provide access to PHI in a Designated Record Set to the
Covered Entity, or as direcled by Covered Entity, to an individual in order to meet the
requirements under 45 CFR Section 164.524.

h. Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for an
amendment of PHI or a record about an individual contained in a Designated Record
Set, the Business Associate shall make such PHI available to Covered Entity for
amendment and incorporate any such amendment to enable Covered Entity to fulfill its
obligations under 45 CFR Section 164.526.

i. Business Associate shall document such disclosures of PH! and information related to
such disclosures as would be required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an
individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164.528.

J- Within ten (10) business days of receiving a written request from Covered Entity for a
request for an accounting of disclosures of PHI, Business Associate shall make available
to Covered Entity such information as Covered Entity may require to fulfill its obligations
to provide an accounting of disclosures with respect to PHl in accordance with 45 CFR
Section 164.528.

k. In the event any individual requests access to, amendment of, ar accounting of PHI
directly from the Business Associate, the Business Associate shall within two (2)
business days forward such request to Covered Entity. Covered Entity shall have the
responsibility of responding to forwarded requests. However, if forwarding the
individual's request to Covered Entity would cause Covered Entity or the Business
Associate to violate HIPAA and the Privacy and Security Rule, the Business Associate
shall instead respond to the individual's request as required by such law and notify
Covered Entity of such response as soon as practicable.

l. Within ten (10) business days of termination of the Agreement, for any reason, the
Business Associate shall retum or destroy, as specified by Covered Entity, all PHI
received from, or created or received by the Business Associate in connection with the
Agreement, and shall not retain any copies or back-up tapes of such PHI. If return or
destruction-is not feasible, or the disposition of the PHI has been otherwise agreed to in
the Agreement, Business Assaciate shall continue to extend the protections of the
Agreement, to such PHI and limit further uses and disclosures of such PHI to those
purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long as Business jl)?
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Associate maintains such PHI. If Covered Entity, in its sole discretion, requires that the
Business Associate destroy any or all PHI, the Business Associate shall certify to
Covered Entity that the PHI has been destroyed.

4) Obligations of Covered Entity

a. Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of any changes or limitation(s) in its
Notice of Privacy Practices provided to individuals in accordance with 45 CFR Section
164,520, to the extent that such change or limitation may affect Business Associate’s
use or disclosure of PHI.

b. Covered Entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any changes in, or revocation
of permission provided to Covered Entity by individuals whose PHI may be used or
disclosed by Business Associate under this Agreement, pursuant to 45 CFR Section
164.506 or 45 CFR Section 164.508.

c. Covered entity shall promptly notify Business Associate of any restrictions on the use or
disclosure of PHi that Covered Entity has agreed to in accordance with 45 CFR 164.522,
to the extent that such restriction may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of
PHI.

(5) Termination for Cause

In addition to Paragraph 10 of the standard terms and conditions {P-37) of this
Agreement the Covered Entity may immediatety terminate the Agreement upon Covered
Entity's knowledge of a breach by Business Associate of the Business Associate
Agreement set forth herein as Exhibit |. The Covered Entity may either immediately
terminate the Agreement or provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the
alleged breach within a timeframe specified by Covered Entity. If Covered Entity
determines that neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the
violation to the Secretary. .

(6) Miscellaneous

a. Definitions and Regulatory References. All terms used, but not otherwise defined herein,
shall have the same meaning as those terms in the Privacy and Security Rule, amended
from time to time. A reference in the Agreement, as amended to include this Exhibit |, 1o
a Section in the Privacy and Security Rule means the Section as in effecl or as
amended.

b. Amendment. Covered Entity and Business Associate agree to 1ake such action as is
necessary to amend the Agreement, from time to time as is necessary for Covered
Entity to comply with the changes in the requirements of HIPAA, the Privacy and
Security Rule, and applicable federal and state law.

C. Data Ownership. The Business Associate acknowledges that it has no ownership rights
with respect to the PHI provided by or created on behalf of Covered Entity.

d. Interpretation. The parties agree that any ambiguity in the Agreement shall be resclved

to permit Covered Entity to comply with HIPAA, the Privacy and Security Rule. )/f
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e. Segregation. If any term or condition of this Exhibit | or the application thereof to any
person(s) or circumstance is held invalid, such invalidity shall not affect other terms or
conditions which can be given effect without the invalid term or condition; o this end the
terms and conditions of this Exhibit | are declared severable.

f. Survival. Provisions in this Exhibit | regarding the use and disclosure of PHI, return or
destruction of PHI, extensions of the prolections of the Agreement in section (3} |, the
defense and indemnification provisions of section (3) e and Paragraph 13 of the
standard terms and conditions (P-37), shall survive the termination of the Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the parties hereto have duly executed this Exhibit |.

Department of Health 3"9.tiuman Services M”“‘] (/‘M?\‘\\v-n &A‘J-\),— o‘ )\l Or)ﬂz? t\Ju.J

Name of the Contractor

Do W Pe_@lu

Signature of Authorized Represéntative
Tanie Lessed Peqhiell

Name of Authonzed Repre ntative Name of Authorized Representative

. . ) A e
bl(tm/ %éd&ll-u\ C,kr\'SVM &b(\(\\k ’
Fitle of Authorized Representative Title of Authorized Representative N YA \V I I\} Rl

9-1a2-17 4-3"17 6\6

Date ' Date

J¢
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CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY AND TRANSPARENCY
ACT (FFATA)} COMPLIANCE

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires prime awardees of individual
Federal grants equal to or greater than $25,000 and awarded on or after October 1, 2010, to report on
data related to executive compensation and associated firsl-tier sub-grants of $25,000 or more. If the
initial award is below $25,000 but subsequent grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over
$25,000, the award is subject to the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award.

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), the
Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS) must report the following information for any
subaward or contract award subject to the FFATA reporting requirements:

Name of entity
Amount of award
Funding agency
NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
Program source
Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action
Location of the entity
Principle ptace of performance
Unique identifier of the entity (DUNS #) (

0. Total compensation and names of the top five executives if.
10.1. More than 80% of annual gross revenues are from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and
10.2. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

S0 NO AWM=

Prime grant recipients must submit FFATA required dala by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in which
the award or award amendment is made.

The Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the Genera! Provisions agrees to comply with the provisions of
The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law 109-282 and Public Law 110-252,
and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reparting Subaward and Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees
to have the Contractor's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the General Pravisions
execute the following Certification:

The below named Contractar agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to the NH
Department of Health and Human Services and to comply with all applicable provisions of the Federal
Financial Accountability and Transparency Act.

A- 40 S RNRVEES P{-’@W

oate ;j:l':eb\w &9, O«Mﬂ\h—
}w.w‘:{“ﬁ/\}wwh ’\J@‘J

£
| JW

Exhibit J - Centification Regarding the Federal Funding Contractor Initials
Accountability And Transparency Act (FFATA) Compliance o .—/—)
CL/DHHS/M10713 Page 1 of 2 Date a




New Hampshire Department of Health and Human Services
Exhibit J

FORM A

As the Contractor identified in Section 1.3 of the General Provisions, | certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate.

1. The DUNS number for your entity is: O 8 OS 3\{0 8 0

2. Inyour business or organization's preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percent or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts,
loans, grants, sub-grants, and/or cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual
gross revenues from U.S. federal contracts, subconiracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or '
cooperative agreements?

& NO YES

if the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here

If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your
business or organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a)} or 15(d) of the Securities
Exchange Act of 1834 (15 U.5.C.78m(a), 780o(d)) or section 6104 of the interal Revenue Code of
19867

NO YES
If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop here

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:

4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or
organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name:; Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount;
Name: Amount:
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DHHS INFORMATION SECURITY REQUIREMENTS

1. Confidential Information: In addition to Paragraph #9 of the General Provisions (P-37) for the purpose of this
RFP, the Department’s Confidential information includes any and all information owned or managed by the
State of NH - ¢reated, received from or on behal!f of the Department of Health and Human Services (DHHS)
or accessed in the course of performing contracted services - of which collection, disclosure, protection, and
disposition is governed hy slate or federal law or regulation. This information includes, but is not limited to
Personal Health Information (PHI}), Personally Identifiable Information (Pll), Federal Tax Information (FTI},
Social Security Numbers (SSN), Payment Card Industry {PCI), and or other sensitive and confidential
information.

2. The vendor will maintain proper security controls to protect Department confidential information collected,
processed, managed, and/or stored in the delivery of contracted services. Minimum expeclations include:

2.1.Maintain palicies and procedures to pratect Department confidential information throughout the
information lifecycle, where applicable, (from creation, transformation, use, storage and secure
destruction) regardiess of the media used to store the data (i.e., tape, disk, paper, etc.).

2.2. Maintain appropriate authentication and access conlrols to contractor systems that collect, transmit, or
store Department confidential information where applicable.

2.3.Encrypt, at a minimum, any Department confidential data stored on portable media, e.g., laptops, USB
drives, as well as when transmitted over public networks iike the Intemet using current industry
standards and best practices for strong encryption.

2.4. Ensure proper security monitoring capabilities are in place to detect potential security events that can
impacl State of NH systems and/or Department confidential information for contractor provided systems.

2.5. Provide securily awareness and education for its employees, contractors and sub-contractors in support
of protecting Department confidential infarmation

2.6. Maintain a documented breach notification and incident response process. The vendor will contact the
Department within twenty-four 24 hours to the Depariment’s contract manager, and additional email
addresses provided in this section, of a confidential information breach, computer security incident, or
suspected breach which affects or includes any State of New Hampshire systems that connect lo the
State of New Hampshire network.

2.6.1."Breach” shall have the same meaning as the term "Breach” in section 164.402 of Title 45, Code of
Federa! Regulations. "Computer Security Incident” shall have the same meaning *"Computer
Security Incident” in section twa (2) of NIST Publication 800-61, Computer Security Incident
Handling Guide, National tnstitute of Standards and Technology, U.S. Department of Commerce.

Breach nolifications will be sent to the following email addresses:
26.1.1. DHHSChiefinformationOfficer@dhhs.nh.qgov
2.6.1.2. DHHSInformationSecurityQffice@dhhs.nh.gov

2.7.M the vendor will maintain any Confidential Information on its systems ({or its sub-contractor systems), the
vendor will maintain a documented process for securely disposing of such data upon request or contract
termination; and will obtain written certification for any State of New Hampshire data destroyed by the
vendor or any subcontractors as a part of ongeing, emergency, and or disaster recovery operations.
When no longer in use, electronic media containing State of New Hampshire data shall be rendered
unrecoverable via a secure wipe program in accordance with industry-accepted standards for secure
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deletion, or otherwise physically destroying the media (for example, degaussing). The vendor will
document and certify in writing at time of the data destruction, and will provide written certification to the
Department upon request. The written certification will include all details necessary to demonstrate data
has been properly destroyed and validaled. Where applicable, regulatory and professional standards for
retention requirements will be jointly evaluated by the State and vendor prior to destruction,

2.8.1f the vendor will be sub-contracting any core functions of the engagement supporting the services for
State of New Hampshire, the vendor will maintain a program of an intemnal process or processes that
defines specific security expectations, and montoring compliance to security requirements that at a
minimum match those for the vendor, including breach notification requirements.

3. The vendor will wark with the Department to sign and comply with all applicable State of New Hampshire and
Department system access and authorization policies and procedurgs, systems access forms, and computer
use agreements as part of obtaining and maintaining access to any Department system(s). Agreements will
be completed and signed by the vendor and any applicable sub-contractors prior to system access being
authorized.

4. If the Department determines the vendor is a Business Associate pursuant lo 45 CFR 160.103, the vendor will
work with the Department to sign and execute a HIPAA Business Associate Agreement (BAA) with the
Department and is responsible for maintaining compliance with the agreement.

5. The vendor will work with the Department at its request to complete a survey. The purpose of the survey is to
enable the Department and vendor to monitor for any changes in risks, threats, and vulnerabilities that may
occur over the life of the vendor engagement. The survey will be completed annually, or an alternate time
frame at the Departments discretion with agreement by the vendor, or the Department may request the
survey be completed when the scope of the engagement between the Department and the vendor changes.
The vendor will not stare, knowingly or unknowingly, any State of New Hampshire or Department data
offshore or outside the boundaries of the United States unlass prior express wriften consent is obtained from
the appropriate authorized data owner or leadership member within the Depariment.

Q’LP
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